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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474

Fax:603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

September 30, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing contract with Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
(VC#177511), Keene, NH, for the ongoing provision of a Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing
program and Supportive Services to individuals and families facing homelessness through the
Federal Continuum of Care Program, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the
total price limitation by $122,202 from $236,834 to $359,036 and extending the completion date
from December 31, 2021, to December 31, 2022, effective January 1, 2022, or upon Governor
and Council approval, whichever is later. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on December 18, 2019, item
#32, and the contract was most recently amended on February 17, 2021, item #8.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrance's between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase .

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
42308612 $59,392 $0 $59,392

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
42308612 $118,417 $0 $118,417

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
42308612 $59,025 $61,101 $120,126

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
42308612 $0 $61,101 $61,101

Total $236,834 $122,202 $359,036

EXPLANATION

Annually, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) releases a
Continuum of Care Program competition. As part of this competition, the Department (as the

The Deparlmenl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Collaborative Applicant for the Balance of State Continuum of Care) is required to issue a Request
for Proposals based on the HUD application. HUD issues strict guidelines that specify the eligible
activities, populations to be served, expected performance outcomes, and time frames for the
competition. All project applications, new and renewal, are scored based on a Rank and Review
Policy and scoring tools that are created to match the HUD Notice of Funding Availability. Project
applications are ranked in order of score from highest to lowest, and are funded based on this
ranking process. All project applications and individual project scores are reviewed by HUD who
informs the Continuum of Care of the funding amount for all renewal projects. Funding for new
projects is determined by the amount of bonus funding, if any, is made available by HUD.

The purpose of this request is for the ongoing provision of a Permanent Housing program
that delivers rental assistance, service access, supportive services and associated administrative
services to individuals and families who face chronic homelessness in order to improve the ability
of participants to live more independently.

Approximately seven (7) households, comprised of individuals and families in Cheshire
and Sullivan counties, will be served annually.

This program serves individuals and families experiencing homelessness who would
otherwise likely be left in unsafe situations without permanent housing. Using the Housing First
model, the Contractor develops Stabilization and Crisis Management plans to facilitate each
participant's movement into sustained permanent housing. Additionally, the Contractor works to
maximize each participant's ability to live more independently by providing connections to
community and mainstream sen/ices.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following reports and
information:

•  Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information, as well
as income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  Data entry into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and

. housing programs.

As referenced In Exhibit C-1. Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2.,
Renewal, of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for one {1) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer
permanent housing options available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families In unsafe and
potentially deadly situations. Additionally, if data is not collected as required by the contract, the
Department will be in non-compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of
federal funding for homeless and permanent housing supportive services.

Area Sen/ed: Cheshire and Sullivan counties

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN #NH0074L1T002008
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

^DocuSlgned by:

—BOeOMFFECEWB^...

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

CONTINUUM of CARE, RAPID RE-HOUSING PROGRAM FISCAL DETAIL

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM
100% Federal Funds, 0% General Funds, 0% Other Funds (U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Federal Continuum of Care Program)

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42308612 $86,010.00 $0.00 $86,010.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42308612 $86,010.00 $0.00 $86,010.00

Sub Total $172,020.00 $0.00 $172,020.00

State Fiscal
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42308612 S59.392.00 $0.00 $59,392.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 42308612 $118,417.00 $0.00 $118,417.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 42308612 $59,025.00 $61,101.00 $120,126.00

2023 102-500731. Contracts for Program Services 42308612 $0.00 $61,101.00 $61,101.00

Sub Total $236,834.00 $122,202.00 $359,036.00

Overall Total] $408,8S4.00| $122,202.00| $531,OS6.00|

Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
SS-2020-BHS-04.PERMA-19-A02

Fiscal Oetaii
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing Program contract is
by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and Southwestern Community Services, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on December 18, 2019 (Item #32), as amended on February 17. 2021 (Item #8), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language. Section 2.. Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

December 31. 2022

2. Form P-37., General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$359,036

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing Program, Section 1,
F'rovisions Applicable to All Services, by adding Paragraph 1.10., to read:

1.10. The Departrnent shall annually conduct a review, onsite or remotely at the Department's
discretion, of the Contractor's participant files and at least one month of financial data to
ensure compliance with the contractual objectives and requirements.

4. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.4, to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers: NH0074L1T001806 (January 1, 2020 - December 31, 2020)

NH0074L1T0019007 (January 1, 2021 .- December 31, 2021)

NH0074L1T002008 (January 1. 2022 - December 31, 2022)

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.7, Subparagraph 1.2.7.1, to read:

1.2.7.1. January 1, 2020 - December 31, 2022, not to exceed the amount specified in Form P-
37, General Provisions, Block 1.8., Price Limitation.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.8, to read;

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program are as follows:

Description January 1, 2020 through
December 31, 2021

January 1, 2022 through
December 31, 2022

Total Cumulative

Amount

1.2.8.1 Rental Assistance $189,132 $95,616 $284,748

1.2.8.2 Supportive Services $42,232 $21,116 $63,348

1.2.8.3 Administration $5,470 $5,470 $10,940

1.2.8.4 Total Program Amount: $236,834 $122,202 $359,036

1.2.8.5 25% Required Match $60,576 $30,551 $91,127

7. Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #2, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by lef^ence
herein.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-19-A02

A-S-1.0

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Page 1 of 3

Contractor Initials

Date
9/10/2021
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective January 1, 2022, subject to Governor and
Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

9/15/2021

Date

^OocuSign«d by:

tani i io

Title: Associate Commissioner

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

9/10/2021

Date

^  OocuS

I Mk
OocuSlgn*d by:

dcMJiih
Name:

Title: chief Executive officer

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-19-A02

A-S-1.0

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

■DoeuSlgned by:

9/21/2021 J, AursUlL
rP?p^ftmt^pliEt Mdisliall

Date Name;
Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-19-A02 Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 3
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Exhibit B-2, Amendment >2, Budget

SCS Rapid Rehousing

CoC Funds • NH0074L1TCN)2008

.SFy22 - 1/1/22-6/30/22

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance %  47,806 %. 5 S - 5 t  47,eoe % ■ s

Supporti\« Services t  10,556 % » s • s $  10,556 t ■ s

Adminisbaiion S  2,735 i S $ s - t S  2,735 $ ■ J

25% Required Match S  15,276 i 5  15,276 S •

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE *  76,377 S * $  15.276 i ■■ $ S  61,101 % -

•  SFY23 - 7/1/22-12/31/22

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD HIONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Assistance i  47,608 J s S S - S  47,606 $ -■ $

Supportive Senices i  10,556 s $ s i ■ i  10,556 $ •• i

Administration S  2,735 i s i - $  2,735 $ -

25% Required Match S  15,275 i s S  15,275 J $ ■ i
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 5  76,376 i » *  15,27$ $ ■ $  61,101 S - $

TOTAL - 1/1/22-12/31/22
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE 8HS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rental Assistance 05.616

Supportlw Senices
Administration

25% Required Match
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE

Total W/0 Match S 122^02

Exhibit B-2. Amendment >2. Budget
Southwestern Community Services. Inc. Rapid Re-Housing
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-19-A02

Contractor Initials

Page 1 of 1 9/10/2021
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary' of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHWESTERN

COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on May 19. 1965. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccrciaiy of State's ofilce have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 6SSI4

Certificate Number: 0005339790

1B&.

©

23-

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be afi'ixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 5ih day of April A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secreiar%' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Kevin Watterson hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract sigriaiory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretarv/Officer of Southwestem Community Services. Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Nanic)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 18 2021 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Beth Daniels (may list more than one pereon)

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Southwestem Community Services Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements
with the State (Name of Corpr^iation/LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its- agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be desirable' or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of.the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This'authority rem'alns valid for
thir^ (30) days "from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State,of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation.. To the extent that there are 'any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation In ̂ contracts v>ffth the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expresisly stated herein.

ML: LLDated: 9/10/2021
^gnature of Elected Officer
Name: Kevin Watterson

Title: Chairperson

Rev. 03/24/20
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yXCORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/OO/YYYY)

06/23/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED.

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poilcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement{s).

PRODUCER

Clark Mortenson Insurance

PO Box 606

•Keene NH 03431

contact /^na O'Donnell, CPIW. CIC

(603)352-2121 (603) 357«91

AOMESS- ao<Jonnell@clark-mortenson.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 16058

INSURED

Southwestern Comm Services Inc

PO Box 603

Keene NH 03431

INSURER B
Maine Employers Mul Ins Co 11149

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER 6

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 21/22 Master REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED- NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

TnIr
LTR

TODC

INSQ
SD51T
WVDTYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DDIYYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DDIYYYY) LIMITS.

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMACETO REWTEC
PREMISES (Ea occurrencal

PHPK2291636 06/30/2021 06/30/2022

MED EXP (Any one perw)

PERSONAL S AOV INJURY

GENT. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO
JECTX POLICY□ J® □

OTHER:

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGO

1.000.000

100.000

5.000

1.000.000

2.000,000

2.000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANYAUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acddentl

1.000.000

BODILY INJURY (P«r person)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2291641 06/30/2021 06/30/2022 BOOILY INJURY (Per aceiOeni)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accldenll

X UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS LlAB

DED X

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 2.000.000

PHUB773640 06/30/2021 06/30/2022 AGGREGATE 2.000.000

RETENTION $ 0

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatoiy In NH]
If yes. descrioe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTH-
ER

3102800768 04/01/2021 04/01/2022 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 500,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 500,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORO 101. AddlUonal RemerXs Schedule, may be attached if more space Is required)

Workers Compensation laws apply for the state of: NH
All Officers are Included

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Department of Health & Human Services Bureau of Contracts &
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

'yii j

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Vision Statement

Southwestern Community Services

SCS seeks to create and support a climate within

the communities of southwestern New Hampshire
wherein poverty is never accepted as a chronic or

permanent condition of any person's life.
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Mission Statement

Southwestern Community Services

SCS strives to empower low income people and

families. With dignity and respect, SCS will provide
direct assistance, reduce stressors and advocate for such

persons and families as they lift themselves toward

self-sufficiency.

In partnership and close collaboration with local

communities, SCS will provide leadership and support

to develop resources, programs and services to further

aid this population.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 70969206-650E-4381-9D57-109A8899F9C2

Financial Statements

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC

ANDRELATED COMPANIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED

MAY 31, 2020 AND 2019
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2020 AND 2019
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9-28
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29-30

31

32
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Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 38
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
&Roberts

To the Board of Directors of

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

Profestionil Auodnitoti

CKBTIPIID PUBLIC AOOOUNTANTS
WOLTEBORO . NORTIICONWAY

DO"VTn . CONCORD

STRATHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of May 31, 2020 and 2019,
and the related consolidated statements of cash flows, functional expenses, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the years then ended, and the related consolidated
statement of activities for the year ended May 31, 2020.

Management's Responsibilitv for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' ResDonsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related
companies as of May 31, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies'
2019 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated November 5, 2019. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31, 2019, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the
Schedules of Functional Revenues and Expenses, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such inforrriation
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 5, 2020, on pur consideration of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting arid on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southwestern Community
Services. Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

otioTiL lYtc^tmruli 4^

October 5, 2020

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPAMIFR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MAY 31.2020 AND 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable

Interest receivable

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land and buildings
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Investment in related parties
Due from related parties
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits
Other assets

Total other assets

Total assets

2020

1,400.153

1,203.489

57,168

2.660.810

19,243,210

541,236
271.753

20,056,199

8.557.576

11.498.623

198,492

59,067
809,897

69,767

384

1,137,607

2019

882,187

1,245,826
51.722

112.000

45.547

2.337,282

19,188,791

554,976
220 291

19,964,058

7.938.217

12.025.841

198,728
59,102

849,334

62,996

384

1,170,544

$  15,297,040 $ 15,533,667

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other current liabilities

Refundable advances

Interest payable
Current portion of long term debt

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term debt, less current portion shown above
Paycheck Protection Program

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

160,672

87,023
228,394

149,154

290,437

125,324

1,041,004

8,905,857

439,070

9,344,927

10,385,931

4,766,637

144,472 _

4,911.109 _

$  15,297.040 $

391,613

119,620

233,900

138,740

180,994
49,547

227,221

1.341,635

9,086,445

9,086,445

10,428,080

.4,922,671

182,916

5,105,587

15,533,667
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2020

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

2020

Total

2019

Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Government contracts

Program service fees
Rental income

Developer fee income

Support
Sponsorship
Interest income

Forgiveness of debt
Miscellaneous

In-kind contributions

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and

net assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program services
Home energy programs
Education and nutrition

Homeless programs
Housing services
Economic development services
Other programs

Total program services

Supporting activities
Management and general

Total expenses

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS BEFORE

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

(LOSS) GAIN ON INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM

LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

10,819,721

2,605,816

1,165,032

1.508

516,375

26,546
9.224

79.338
148,113

167,553

15.339,226

115,679

15 454 905

5,153,989

2,687,612

2,060,655

2,433,660

737,663
775,342

13,848,921

1.761,642

15.610,563

(155,658)

(140)

(236)

(156,034)

4,922,671

$  4,766,637

77,235

77,235

(115.679)

(38.4441

(38.444)

(38.444)

182.916

$ 10,619,721

2,605,816

1,165,032

1,508

593,610
26,546

9,224

79,338
148,113

167,553

15,416,461

15.416.461

5,153,989

2,687,612

2,060,655

2,433,660

737,663
775,342

13,848,921

1,761,642

15,610,563

(194,102)

(140)

(236)

(194,478)

5,105,587

10,672,702

2,485,405

995,380

452,391
70,893

7.153

388,849
120,697

241,499

15,434,969

15.434.969

5,238,483

2,659,830

1,994,872

2,319,865

721,370
894,986

13,829,406

1,880,406

15,709,812

(274,843)

(6,481)

18,116

(263,208)

3,932,113

1,436,682

144,472 $ 4.911,109 $ 5,105,587

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2020 AND 2019

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  (194,478) $  (263,208)
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 663,252 580,115

Loss on disposal of property 140 6,481

Loss (gain) on investment in limited partnerships 236 (18,116)
Forgiveness of debt (79,338) (388,849)

Decrease (increase) in assets:
Accounts receivable 42,337 (185,904)
Prepaid expenses (5.446) 5,509
Interest receivable 45,547 -

Due from related parties 35 44,240
Security deposits (6,771) 5,151

(Decrease) increase in liabilities:
Accounts payable (230,941) 145,829

Accrued expenses (32,597) (106,905)
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes (5,506) (16,792)
Other current liabilities 10,414 3,167

Refundable advances 109,443 (12,937)
Interest payable (49,547) 49,547

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 266,780 (152,672)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds-from sale of property - 215,000
Purchase of property (136,174) (139,717)

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (136,174) 75.283

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term debt 36,679 40,048
Repayment of long term debt (127,826) (160,029)
Paycheck Protection Program funds received 439,070 -

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 347,923 (119,981)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 478,529 (197,370)

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,731,521 1,604,748

CASH TRANSFERRED FROM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP - 324,143

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR $  2,210,050 $  1,731,521

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2020 AND 2019

2020 2019

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for Interest $ 165,929 $ 203,408

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP:
Prepaid expenses $ - $ (22,212)
Land and buildings - (2,373,335)
Furniture and fixtures - (168,237)
Security deposits ^ (16,151)

Total transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP $ $ (2,579.935)

Transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LP:
Accounts payable $ - $ 121,699
Accrued.expenses - 20,347
Due to related parties . 85,181
Long term debt ^ 1,332,075

Total transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LP $ $ 1,559,302

Total partners'capital from newly consolidated LP $ - $ 1,344,776

Partners' capital previously recorded as investment in related parties 2 91,906

Total transfer of partners' capital from newly consolidated LP $ - $ 1,436.682

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SQUTHWgSTgRW COMMUNITY SgRVICgS tNC. ANO RELATgQ CQMPAMtgS

CONSOUOATEO STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2020

Education Economic Management

Home Energy and Homeless Housing Development Other Total and 2020

Proorams Nutrition Proorams Services Proorams Prooram General Total

Payrd $  487.456 S  1.374,787. S  335.905 $  735,214 $  435.177 S  424.014 5  3,772.553 S  731,826 S  4.504.379
Payrol taxes 36.287 107,590 25.566 56,083 35,147 32.738 293.411 55.964 349.375

Employee benefits 135.770 412.407 121.495 271.770 85.902 193.929 1,221.273 45,011 1.268.284

Reliremeni 29.265 71,941 19.791 58,108 21.016 13.973 214,094 64,115 278,209

Advertising 728 3,064 83 2.632 3.999 2.100 12.626 591 13,217

Bank charges 4 . 17 4,117 -
54 4,192 7,456 11.648

Bad debt expense . 45 195 - . - 240 4,000 4.240

Computer cost - 28,124 5.538 8.120 15.541 - 57,323 166.243 223,566

Contractual 776.055 18,562 13.624 27.752 2.719 74.250 912,982 41.190 954,172

Depreciation . 27.369 108,291 366.399 - 10.913 512.972 150.280 •663,252
Dues/registration - 977 - 495 468 - 1,940 9.720 11,660

Duplicating • 7.480 • - - - 7.480 5.684 13,164

Insurance 6.667 13.010 24,560 56.680 14.271 5,968 121.156 36.641 157.997

Interest . 7.198 7,527 36.985 . . 51.710 114.681 166.591

Meeting and conference 457 1.042 262 4.913 1,118 2,029 9.821 13.879 23.700

Miscellaneous expense 3.543 1.597 60 44.189 4,722 163 54.274 18.105 72.379

Miscellaneous taxes - - - 61.942 - • 61.942 200 62.142
Equ^ers purchases 24.948 1.646 • 6.426 - - 33.020 30 33.050

Office expense 20,017 8.744 6.002 9.148 10,480 33 54.424 24.136 78.560
Postage 240 261 123 189 252 - 1.065 24,447 25.512

Professional fees 2.045 - 3,200 28.718 - 706 34.669 89,175 123.844

Staff development and tralrung - 2.135 648 1.208 415 3,088 7.494 2.787 10.281

Subscriptions - • • 95 • - 95 1,801 1.696

Telephone 2,283 1.968 17,624 17,959 3,179 1,166 44.179 41,601 85,780

Travel 6,792 16.310 12.602 7,545 30,585 15 73,849 3,031 76,680
Vehicle 3,902 5.121 5.574 30,678 36,849 9,696 91.820 8,202 100,022
Rent . 25,570 . . . 25,570 - 25,570
Space costs - 174.312 352.469 583,375 2,699 89 1,112,944 100.446 1.213,390
Direct client assistance 3,637,530 208,759 999.499 12.920 33,124 418 4,892.250 - 4.892.250
hvkind expenses - 167.553 - - - 167,553 - 167,553

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION 5,153.989 2.687.612 2,060.655 2.433,660 737.663 775.342 13.648,921 1.761.642 15.610,563

Alocation of mar>agemera and general expenses 655.609 341,876 . 262.124 309,572 93.834 98.627 1.761.642 (1.761.6421 .

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES S 5,609.596 S  3.029,488 $  2,322.779 S  2.743,232 $  831.497 S  873.969 $ 15.610,563 5 S 15.610,563

Sm NoIm to Consolidctad Rnancial Statements
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SQUTHWFSTfRM CnMMIIMlTV SgffVICgS INC. AND RELATED COMPAMIFS

CONSOUDATEO STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. Mia

Education Economic Management
Home Energy and Homeless Housing Developmeni Other Total end 2019

Proorams Nutrition Proorams Services 5«Yf5T1 Proorams Prooram and General Total

Payrd $  432.968 S  1.224,986 $  377.595 $  775,425 S  414.730 S  432,826 $ 3,658,530 S  753,068 S  4,411.598
Payrd taxes 33,521 97.919 29.527 59.738 33,519 34.195 288,419 58,304 346,723
Employee benefits 106.054 415,890 142,654 289.985 97,771 180.294 1.232.648 111,111 1,343,759
Retiremenl 29.200 70,406 18.908 61,936 27.831 ,  16.181 224,462 71,547 296,009
Adveftislng . 500 1.912 4,013 818 9,487 16,730 - 16,730
Bank charges - - . 4,444 . 1 4,445 7,329 11,774
Bad debt expertte - 10 - 90 - - 100 . 100

Computer cost - 24,540 4.759 3,027 14.926 750 48,002 116,846 164,848
Contractual 629!04S 32,930 230.984 38.696 2,719 116,585 1,050.959 39,743 1.090,702
Depreciation - 28.300 108,291 281,950 . 14.207 432,748 147,367 560,115
Dues/registration . 5,277 - 488 868 1,312 7.945 11,879 19,824
Duplicating - 8,852 . . . . 8,852 4,155 13,007
Insurance 6,714 14,798 23,590 60,672 14,130 7.164 127.068 33,892 160.960
Interest . 7,775 6,022 21,956 . 1.610 39.363 164,045 203,408
Meeting and confererKe 8,673 813 2,567 8,104 565 22,569 43.291 24,957 68.248
Miscellaneous expense 181 1,695 637 34,793 3,651 2.931 43.686 19,278 63,166
MisceBaneous taxes . . . 34,900 . 34.900 369 35.289
Equ^ent pmhases 1.292 15,274 . 7,287 . 23.853 1,180 25,033
Office cxportse 24.820 8.499 6.695 11,475 6.458 807 58.754 11.656 70,410
Postage 97 268 138 53 214 770 24,238 25.008
Professional fees 4.300 - 1.301 36,095 . 41,696 90,968 132,664
Staff developmeni and training 2.128 1,580 1,678 72 1,904 21,877 29,239 10,590 39.829
Subsaiptions - - . 655 354 •- 1.009 399 1,408
Telephone 2.087 2,356 18,479 17,817 2,336 1,589 44,664 52,308 96,972
Travel 7.951 16.256 15,412 5,183 29,531 608 74.941 4,855 79,796
Vehicle 2.300 5,225 1.068 37,795 44,426 8,566 99.402 13,436 112,838
Rent

- 24,800 . 150 . . 24,950 . 24,950
Space costs

- 194.946 332,351 512,392 1,000 376 1,041.065 106.866 1,147,931
Direct client assistance 3.947.152 214,436 668,264 10,674 23,619 21,049 4,865.214 . 4.865.214
lr>-lund experaes • 241.499 - - . . 241.499 . 241,499

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT ALLOCATION 5.238,483 2,659.830 1.994.872 2,319.065 721,370 894,986 13,829.406 1,880,406 15,709,812

ABocation of management and general expenses 712,284 361.661 271,246 315,436 , 98086 121,633 1,880.406 (1.880.406)

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES $  5.950,767 $  3,021.491 S  2.266,118 S  2.635.301 S  819,456 S  1.016,679 S 15,709,612 $ S 15,709.812

Sm Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (the Organization) is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed as an umbrella corporation that offers an array of
services to the elderly, disabled, and low-income households in the Cheshire and
Sullivan counties of New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance in the
areas of education, child development, employment, energy and its conservation,
housing, and homelessness prevention. Services are provided through
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., and its related corporations, SCS
Management Corporation, SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation,
SCS Housing Development, Iric., and various limited partnerships, as described
below. The Organization is committed to providing respectful support service and
assisting individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them
overcome the causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues is derived from
governmental contracts.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Southwestern

Community Services, Inc. and the following entities as Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. has both an economic interest and control of the entities through a
majority voting interest in their governing board. All significant intercompany
items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic consolidated

financial statements.

SCS Management Corporation
SCS Housing, Inc.
SCS Development Corporation
SCS Housing Development, Inc.
Drewsville Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsville)
Jeffrey Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Jeffrey) - Sold 2/1/19
Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Troy Senior)
Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene
East Side)
Winchester Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Winchester)
Swanzey Township Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Swanzey)
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, Limited Partnership
(Snow Brook)



DocuSign Envelope ID: 70969206-650E-4381-9D57-109A8899F9C2

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
and related companies have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require
the Organization to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to the following net asset classifications. The classes of net
assets are determined by the presence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose In
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets
may be used at the discretion of the Organization's Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

As of May 31, 2020 and 2019, the Organization had net assets without donor
restrictions and with donor restrictions.

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such Information should be read in
conjunction with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended May
31, 2019 from which the summarized information was derived.

Refundable Advances

The Organization records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
it is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which lime it is
recognized as revenue.

In-Kind Support

The Organization records various types of in-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized if the
service received creates or enhances long-lived assets or requires specialized
skill, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need
to be purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received.

10
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Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported'amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements
of cash flows as of May 31:

2020 2019

Cash, operations $ 1,400,153 $ 882,187
Cash escrow and reserve funds 809.897 849.334

Total cash and restricted cash $ 2.210.050 S 1.731.521

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at May 31, 2020
and 2019. The Organization has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

Notes Receivable

The Organization had two notes receivable from Monadnock Economic
Development Corporation (MEDC), an unrelated third party. The notes
receivables were stated at the amount that was expected to be collected at
year end. Interest was accrued at a rate of 4% annually. The balance of the
notes receivable and related interest receivable was $112,000 and $45,547,
respectively, at May 31, 2019. Payment on the notes receivable and accrued
interest was realized during the year ended May 31, 2020.

11
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Current Vulnerability Due to Certain Concentrations
The Organization is operated in a heavily regulated environment. The
operations of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules
and regulations of federal, state and local regulatory agencies. Such
administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act
of Congress or Legislature. Such changes niay occur \with little notice or
inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the additional
administrative burden, to comply \with a change. For the years ended May 31,
2020 and 2019, approximately 69% of the Organization's total revenue was
received from government agencies. The future, nature of the Organization is
dependent upon continued support from the government.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions,
which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.

Property and Depreciation

Purchased property and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition
or at fair value at the date of receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization generally capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost greater
than $5,000 and an expected life greater than one year. Depreciation is
provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10 - 40 Years
Vehicles and equipment 5-10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 7 Years

The use of certain assets is specified under the terms of grants received frorti
agencies of the federal government. These grants also place liens on certain
assets and impose restrictions on the use of funds received from the disposition
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31, 2020 and 2019
totaled $663,252 and $580,115, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Revenue Recognition

Amounts received from conditional grants and contracts received for specific
purposes are generally recognized as income to the extent that related expenses
and conditions are incurred or met. Conditional grants received prior to the
conditions being met are reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash
and other assets are reported as with donor restrictions if they are received \with
donor imposed stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. However, if a
restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the
Organization reports the support' as without donor restrictions.

12
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Income Taxes

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and SOS Management Corporation
are exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
income tax on their exempt function income.

SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing
Development, Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net
operating loss carryfonwards totaling $1,230,191 and $1,012,604 at May 31, 2020
and 2019, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset against future
taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2027. SCS Development
Corporation has federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $555 and $579 at
May 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset
against future taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2022.

The tax effects of the carryforwards as related to deferred tax assets is as
follows as of May 31, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Tax benefit from loss carryfonwards $258,457 $212,768
Valuation allowance (258,457) (212.768)

Deferred tax asset $ - $

Drewsville, Jeffrey, Troy Senior, Winchester, Keene East Side, Swanzey, and
Snow Brook are taxed as partnerships. Federal income taxes are not payable by,
or provided for these entities. Earnings and losses are included in the partners'
federal income tax returns based on their share of partnership earnings.
Partnerships are required to file income tax returns with the State of New
Hampshire and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes,"
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for
measuring, the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements.
Management has analyzed the Organization's lax position taken on its income
tax returns for all open years (tax years ending May 31, 2018 - 2020), and has
concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's financial statements.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial instruments, provides a definition of fair
value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a
framework in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value
which emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an
entity-specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair
value measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may
use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches
to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assunriptions in fair value measurements, Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest
priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows
(230): Restricted Cash (ASU 2016-18). The amendments address diversity in
practice that exists in the classification and presentation of changes in restricted
cash on the statement of cash flows. The amendments require that a statement
of cash flows explain the change during the period in the total of cash, cash
equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted
cash equivalents. As a result, amounts generally described as restricted cash
and restricted cash equivalents should be included with cash and cash
equivalents when reconciling beginning-of-period and end-of-pehod total
amounts shown on the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-18 is effective for the

Organization's fiscal year ending May 31, 2020 and has been applied
retrospectively to all periods presented.
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During the year, the Organization adopted the provisions of FASB ASU 2018-08,
Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received
and Contributions Made (Topic 958). This accounting standard is meant to help
not-for-profit entities evaluate whether transactions should be accounted for as
contributions or as exchange transactions and, if the transaction is identified as a
contribution, whether it is conditional or unconditional. ASU 2018-08 clarifies how
an organization determines whether a resource provider is receiving
commensurate value in return for a grant. If the resource provider does receive
commensurate value from the grant recipient, the transaction is an exchange
transaction and would follow the guidance under ASU 2014-09 (FASB ASC Topic
606). If no commensurate value is received by the grant maker, the transfer is a
contribution. ASU 2018-08 stresses that the value received by the general public
as a result of the grant is not considered to be commensurate value received by
the provider of the grant. Results for reporting the years ending May 31, 2020
and 2019 are presented under FASB ASU 2018-08. The comparative information
has not been restated and continues to be reported under the accounting
standards In effect in those reporting periods. There was no material impact to
the financial statements as a result of adoption. Accordingly, no adjustment to
opening net assets was recorded.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature,
such as salaries, rent, supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classified by the .
type of activity for which expenses are incurred, such as management and
general and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function using a
reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on function and use.
The costs of providing certain program and supporting services have been
directly charged.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
services. The indirect cost rate is 11.96% effective from June 1, 2017 through
May 31, 2020.

NOTE 2 BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $250,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest is due monthly and is stated at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate. The
line is secured by all the Organization's assets. As of May 31, 2020 and 2019,
the interest rate was 3.25% and 5.50%, respectively. There was no outstanding
balance at May 31, 2020 and 2019.
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NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at May 31, 2020 and 2019 consisted of the following:

2020 2019

1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
in monthly installments for principal and interest of
$891 through August 2032. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 96
Main Street). $ 136,370 $ 145,647

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community Development Finance Authority, in
quarterly principal payments based on an
operating income formula applied to affordable
housing portion of the specified real estate. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDFA, 96 Main Street). 29,589 31,589

5.25% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $988
through March 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (People's United Bank,
Ashuelol). 9,652 20,672

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or until project is
sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 17 Pearl). 244,505 244,505

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032, unless there is surplus
cash from which to make a payment, or until
project is sold or refinanced. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 41-43
Central). 376,363 376,363

4.25% mortgage payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016, with a balloon payment
that was due January 2017. The note was
amended during the year ended May 31, 2019,
and is now due December 2026. Under the

amendment, interest rate is 4.94% and monthly
installments for principal and interest are $1,957
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (People's United Bank, Milestones). 130,230 146,515
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2020 2019

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (TD Bank,
Keene Office). 2,175,749 2,212,288

Non-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on
contract. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG, Keene Offce). 460,000 460,000

4% note payable to a development company, in
annual interest installments only through March
2015, at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance was still outstanding at May 31, 2019. The
note was satisfied during the year ended May 31,
2020. The note was secured by real estate of the
Organization (MEDC, Keene Office/Community
Way). - 63,000

4% note payable to a development company, in
annual interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance was still outstanding at May 31, 2019. The
note was satisfied during the year ended May 31,
2020. The note was secured by real estate of the
Organization (MEDC, Keene Office/Community
Way). - 45,000

Note payable to a bank in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $2,463 including interest
through May 2039. Interest is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston which resulted in an

interest rate of 4.67% at May 31, 2020 and 2019.
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (TD Bank, Keene Office/Community
Way). 389,578 401,891
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2020 2019

5.19% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $889
through May 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (ID Bank, 45 Central
Street). 88,433 94,733

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property Is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuelot). 100,000 125,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
112 Charlestown Road). 60,000 75,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing in annual payments in the
amount of 50% of annual surplus cash through
July 2042 at which time the remaining balance is
due. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (NHHFA, Second Chance). 794,189 794,189

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire. No payment is due and 5% of
the balance is forgiven each year through 2032
when the remaining balance becomes due. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG, Second Chance). 328,219 344,536

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire, relating to an agreement
between the City of Keene and SCS for the
purpose of renovating Keene shelters. In total,
SCS will receive $472,000 from CDBG. SCS will
receive the funds as progress is made. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization and will
be fully forgiven providing the facility serves low-
and moderate-income individuals for 20 years
(CDBG, Keene Shelter). 9,500
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2020 2019

6.99% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$652 through June 2019. The note was secured
by a vehicle (TCF, Econoline Van) and paid in full
during 2020. - 1,293

5.54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note is secured by
a vehicle (Ally, Econoline Van). 12,637 19,287

6.54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$442 through November i2023. The note is
secured by a vehicle (Ally, GMC Acadia). 15,903

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
a county in New Hampshire. Payments are
deferred until the note matures in June 2029. The

note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG). 640,000 640,000

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund
energy efficient improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 140,210 140,210

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to a county in New Hampshire. Payments
are deferred until the note matures in December

2028. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG). 900,000 900,000

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and capital improvements.
Beginning in 2016, 10% of the note is forgiven
each year based on the rolling balance. The
mortgage may be released after ten years in
January 2026. The note is secured by real estate
of the Organization (CDFA). 162,880 185,899
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2020 2019

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing to fund
energy efficient improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 228,934 228,934

Swanzey - Non-recourse, 4.90% simple Interest
mortgage note payable to the New Hampshire
Housing (HOME), due September, 2033, principal
and interest payable at the sole discretion of the
lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 289,996 282,720

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due
September 2043, payable in monthly installments
of $1,698, including interest at 2.35% secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 40 year
term of the mortgage. 365,474 377,110

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057, payable in monthly installments of $2,002
including interest at 4.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 441,872 446,561

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero interest

mortgage note payable to New Hampshire
Housing (AHF), due June 2034, principal and
interest payable at the sole discretion of the lender
from the excess cash of the borrower determined

by formula, secured by the Partnership's land and
buildings, subject to low income housing use
restrictions for the 30 year term of the mortgage. 237,173 237,173
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2020 2019

Winchester - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due May 2032,
payable in monthly installments of $370, including
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's
land and buildings, subject to low income housing
use restrictions for the 30 year term of the
mortgage note (NHHFA). 46,978 50,436

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire
Housing (FAF), due May 2032, payable at the sole
discretion of the lender from the excess cash of

the borrower determined by formula, secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30-year
term of the mortgage note (NHHFA). 85,028 92,058

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP loan secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low-
income housing restrictions under, the terms of the
AHP agreement. In the event of a default under
the aforementioned agreement, the loan is due
upon demand with interest accrued at a rate of
11.67% for the period the funds were outstanding

150.000 150.000

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
financing costs 9,049,462 9.332,609

Unamortized deferred financing costs n8.2811 n 8.943)

9,031,181 9,313,666
Less current portion due within one year 125.324 227.221

$8,905,857 $ 9.086.445

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at May 31, 2020 is as follows:

Year Ending
Mav 31 Amount

2021 $  125,324
2022 120,502
2023 119,477
2024 120,573
2025 123,395

Thereafter 8.440.191

Total $9.049.462
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NOTE 4 OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-
cancelable lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods
range from month to month to 2025. Monthly lease payments range from $60 to
$3,625. Lease expense for the years ended May 31, 2020 and 2019 totaled
$140,758 and $144,880, respectively.

Future minimum payments as of May 31, 2020 on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

Total

Amount

$  84,318

18,318

1,050

720

120

$  104.526

NOTE 5 ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES

At May 31, 2020 and 2019, the Organization accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that its employees had earned and vested in the amount of $141,970
and $131,864, respectively.

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is the 100% owner of SOS Housing,
Inc. and SOS Housing Development, Inc. SOS Housing, Inc. and SOS Housing
Development, Inc. are the general partners of ten limited partnerships formed to
develop low-income housing projects through the use of Low Income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwestern Community Services, Inc., SCS Housing, Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, Inc. have guaranteed repayment of liabilities of
various partnerships totaling approximately $13,988,000 and $14,151,000 at
May 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $35,896,000 and
$35,831,000 at May 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, provides collateral on
these loans.

The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federal
sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the
governing laws and regulations. If costs were found not to have been incurred
in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required
to repay the funds.
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No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts,
if any, have not been determined or assessed by government audits as of May
31, 2020 and 2019.

NOTE 7 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended May 31, 2020 and 2019, SCS Housing, Inc. managed
eight and ten limited partnerships, respectively. Management fees charged by
SCS Housing, Inc. totaled $295,814 and $313,466, for the years ended May 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively. Additionally, SCS Housing, Inc. has advanced the
limited partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amounts due and expected to be collected from the limited partnerships
and related entities totaled $59,067 and $59,102 at May 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

NOTE 8 EQUITY INVESTMENT

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for their financial interests in the following companies:

2020 2019

Cityside Housing Associates, LP $  (9,505) $  (9,500)
Marlborough Homes, LP (27) (11)
Payson Village Senior Housing Associates, LP (12,514) (12,503)
Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP (2,071) (1.897)
Wanwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP (28) (21)
Woodcrest Drive Housing Associates, LP 222,842 222,842
Westmill Senior Housing, LP 64 78
Keene Highland Housing Associates, LP (269) f260)

$  198.492 $  198.728

SCS Housing Development, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Cityside Housing
Associates, LP, Marlborough Homes, LP, Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates. LP, Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, and Woodcrest
Drive Housing Associates, LP, a 0.10% partner of Railroad Square Senior
Housing Associates, LP, and a 1% partner of Westmill Senior Housing, LP
during the years ended May 31, 2020 and 2019.

SCS Housing, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP, Snow Brook
Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP, and Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP during the years ended May 31, 2020 and 2019.
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The remaining 99.99% ownership interest in Swanzey Township Housing
Associates, LP and Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP were
acquired by Southwestern Community Services, Inc. during the year ending
May 31, 2019 (see Note 13), and therefore the limited partnership is included in
the consolidated financial statements for the years ended May 31, 2020 and
2019.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was a 14.3% member of Pilot Health,
LLC during the year ended May 31, 2018. Pilot Health was terminated during
the year ended May 31, 2019.

Summarized financial information for entities accounted for under the equity
method, as of May 31, 2020 and 2019, consists of the following:

2020 2019

Total assets $ 5.510 $ 5.745

Total liabilities 2,448 2,454
Capital/Member's equity 3.062 3.291

$  5.510 $ 5.745

Income $ 440 $ 426

Expenses 648 661

Net income (loss) $ (208^ $ f235^

NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the internal Revenue Code. All employees who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the plan.
The Organization begins matching contributions after the employee has
reached one year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organization's
discretion and totaled $278,209 and $296,009 for the years ended May 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively.
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NOTE 10 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes;

2020 2019

NNECAC - Annual Conference Fund

GAPSAA/arm Fund

Transport
HS Parents Association

EHS

Total net assets with donor restrictions

4,814

91,725

40,000

7,933

$  144.472

5,973

91,908

47,260

6,575
31.200

NOTE 11 BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The board designates a portion of the unrestricted net assets for WM Marcello
GAPS funds. There was $14,888 and $12,784 designated by the board at May
31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

NOTE 12 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

During the years ended May 31, 2020 and 2019, the Organization realized
forgiveness of debt income in connection with notes payable to Community
Development Block Grant, HUD and Community Development Finance
Authority. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $79,338 ,and $388,849 for the
years ended May 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

NOTE 13 TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST

During the year ended May 31, 2019, Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
acquired a partnership interest in two low-income housing limited partnerships:
Swanzey and Snow Brook. The amount paid for the partnership interest in
Swanzey and Snow Brook was $1 each, and at the time of acquisition.
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. became the general partner. The
following is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the partnership at the date
of acquisition:

Swanzev Snow Brook

Date of Transfer 06/30/2018 05/01/2019

Cash $  12,856 $  13,374
Security deposits 7,330 8,821

Cash reserves 119,061 178,852
Property, net 1,330,231 1,211,341
Other assets 6.436 15.776

Total assets 1.475.914 1.428.164
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Notes payable 666,902 665,173
Other Liabilities 87.108 140.119

Total liabilities 754.010 805.292

Partners'capital 721,904 622,872

Partners' capital previously recorded
as an investrhent in related parties 31.190 60.716

Partners' capital transferred $ 753.094 $ 683.588

NOTE 14 AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

The following represents Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related
companies' financial assets as of May 31, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,400,153 $ 882,187
Accounts receivable 1,203,489 1,245,826

Due from related party 59,067 59,102
Notes receivable - 112,000
Interest receivable - 45,547
Cash escrow and reserve funds 809.897 849.334

Total financial assets 3.472.606 3.193.996

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:

Due from related party (59,067) (59,102)
Notes receivable - (112,000)
Interest receivable - (45,547)
Reserve funds (809.897) (849.334)

Total amounts not available within one year (868.964) (1.065.983)

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months $ 2.603.642 S 2.128.013

The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of normal operating expenditures, which are, on average, approximately
$1,215,000 and $1,224,000 at May 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The
Organization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.
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NOTE 15 PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM
In April 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of $439,070
under the Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP"). The PPP, is established as part
of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act ("CARES ACT"). If the
Organization does not meet the loan criteria, the unforgiven portion of the PPP
loan is payable over five years at an interest rate of 1%, vi/ith a deferral of
payments for the first six months. As of the date of the audit report, the
Organization has been using the proceeds for purposes consistent with the PPP.
The Organization has 24 weeks beginning the date the proceeds were received to
use up all the PPP proceeds. Through the date of this report, the Organization is
on track to have the entire loan balance forgiven; however, the final determination
of this has not occurred.

NOTE 16 RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 17 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through October
5, 2020, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Subsequent to year end, the Organization obtained approval from the Small
Business Administration for an Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL). The terms
of the agreement allow the Organization to draw up to $150,000. Interest will
accrue at the rate of 2.75% per annum and will accrue only on funds actually
advanced from the date(s) of each advance. Installments, including principal and
interest, of $641 monthly will begin in June 2021. The balance of principal and
interest will be payable in June 2050. The loan is secured by the Small Business
Administration. The schedule of maturities on this loan at May 31, 2020 is as
follows:

Year Ending
Mav 31

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

Thereafter

$

Amount

3,201

3,585

3,685

3,788

135.741

Total $  150.000
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The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread are affecting the Organization's operations. The significance of the impact
of these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the
Organization's financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time
that such disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently
unknowable duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental
regulations that might be imposed in response to the pandemic. The
Organization's business could also be impacted should the disruptions from
COVID-19 lead to changes in consumer behavior. COVID-19 also makes it more
challenging for management to estimate future performance of the businesses,
particularly over the near to medium term.
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SOUTHWgSTCRN COMMUNITY SERVICES INC. AND RELATED COMPANtES

CONSOUDATED SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2020

Education Economic Management

Home Energy and Homeless Housing Development Other Total and 2020

Proorams Nutrition Proorams Services Services Proorams Prooram General Total

REVENUES

Government contracts S 4.5tB.tt8 S 3,020.857 $  1,759,258 S 21.581 $  797.710 S 33.809 $ 10.151.333 5 468.388 S 10.619,721

Program service fees 832.'t&4 • 66,804 985.951 3.496 707.147 2.595.852 9,964 2.605,816

Rental ncome - - 97,328 1,067.704 . - 1,166.032 - 1.165,032

Developer fee Income - - - 1.508 - . 1,508 - 1,508

Support 81.387 36.421 219,105 - 114,117 114.844 565,874 27,736 593.610

Sportsorship - 6.609 . - - 19,737 26,546 • 26.546

Interest mcome 12 17 1,382 2.559 35 11 4,016 5,208 9.224

Forgiveness of debt - - 56,318 23,020 - . 79,338 - 79.338

Miscellaneous 2.860 3.381 21,160 77,326 19.460 - 124,187 23,926 148,113

hvkind contrftiutions . 167 553 . . . . 167,553 • 167.553

Total revenues ar>d other support I 5 434 831 f 3 235038 $ 2 221 355 f 2 179 649 $  934 818 i 875 548 f 535 222 f 15416461

EXPENSES

Payroll s 467,456 s 1.374,787 $  335.905 $ 735,214 $  435,177 s 424.014 S 3,772,553 S 731.826 s 4.504,379

Payroll taxes 36,287 107,590 25.566 56,083 35,147 32.738 293,411 55.964 349,375

Employee benefits 135,770 412,407 121.495 271,770 85,902 193.929 1,221.273 45.011 1.266,284

Retirement 29,266 71,941 19.791 58,108 21,016 13,973 214,094 64,115 278,209
Advertising 728 3,084 83 2.632 3.999 2.100 12.626 591 13.217

Bank charges 4 - 17 4,117 - 54 4.192 7.456 11,648
Bad debt . 45 195 - - - 240 4.000 4.240

Computer cost • 28,124 5.538 8.120 15.541 - 57,323 166,243 223.566

Contractual 776,055 18.582 13,624 27.752 2.719 74.250 912.982 41,190 954.172
Depreciation . 27,369 108,291 366.399 - 10,913 512.972 150,280 663,252

Dues/registration - 977 - 495 468 - 1.940 9,720 11.660
Duplicating - 7.480 . - - - 7.480 5,684 13.164

Insirance 6.667 13.010 24,560 56.680 14.271 5,968 121.156 36,841 157.997

Interest . 7.198 7,527 36.985 . . 51,710 114,881 166.591
Meeting and conferertce 457 1.042 262 4.913 1.118 2,029 9.821 13,879 23,700
Miscelaneous expense 3.543 1.597 60 44.189 4.722 163 54,274 18,105 72,379
Miscellaneous taxes - - - 61.942 - ■ ■ 61,942 200 62,142

Equipment purchases 24.948 1.646 - 6.426 • . 33,020 30 33.050
Office expense 20.017 • 8.744 6,002 9.148 10,480 33 54,424 24,136 78,560

Postage 240 261 123 189 252 1,065 24,447 25,512
Professiortal fees 2.045 . 3,200 28,718 . 706 34.669 89,175 123,844

Staff development and training . 2.135 648 1,208 415 3,068 7,494 2,787 10,281

Subscriptions - - - 95 - - 95 1,801 1,896
Telephorte 2.283 1.968 17,624 17,959 3,179 1,166 44,179 41,601 85,780
Travel 6.792 16.310 12,602 7,545 30,585 15 73,849 3,031 76,880

Vefude 3,902 5,121 5,574 30,678 36,849 9,696 91,820 8.202 100,022
Rent - 25.570 - - - • 25,570 . 25,570
Space costs . 174.312 352,469 583,375 2,699 89 1,112,944 100.446 1.213,390
Direct client assistance 3,637.530 208,759 999,499 12.920 33,124 416 4,892,250 . 4.892,250

In-kind expenses - 167.553 - - - - 167.553 . 167,553

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION 5.153,989 2.687,612 2.060.655 2.433,660 737,663 775,342 13,848,921 1.761,542 15,610,563

ABocaticn of management and gerteral expenses 655,609 341,876 262.124 309,572 93.634 98,627 1.761.842 (1.761.6421 _

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES s 5.809,598 s 3.029,488 S  2.322.779 s 2.743,232 $  831,497 s 873,969 S 15,610,563 $ . s 15.610,563

See Independent Auditors' Report
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SOUTHWgSTFRN COMMUWITY SgRVICgS IMC AND RgLATgP CQMPAWIPS

CONSOUOATEO SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY il. 2019

Hom« Eneryy
Proorama

REVENUES

Government contracts

Program servica fee
Rentai income

Support
Sportsorship
Interest trtcome

Forglverwss of detx

MisceUarteous

(n^nd contributions

Total revenues

572,421

12,751

12

2,770

Education

and

Nutrition

16.646
2.713

10.389

-211522

Homeless

Proorams

$  4,646,587 S 2.853.470 i 1,607,684
74,144

84,704

123,635
1,104

2,183

59,141

4,844

Housing
Services

S  53,038

997,150

909,276

3,211
329,708

69,893

Economic

Development
Services

S  734,566
24.700

168.704

13

25.146

> 5.434.541 S 3.124919 S 1.957.439 > 2 362 276

Total

Prooram

10,243,769
2,441,391

995,380
452,391
70,631

5,440

388,849

113,042
241,499

«  1 120 088 8 14 952 392

Other

Proorams

148.424

772.976
1,400

130.453

66.814

21

Maruigement
and General

t  428,933
44,014

262

1,713

2019

Total

10.672,702
2.485.405

995.380
452.391

70.893

7.153

388.649

120.697

241.499

482577 8 15 434 969

Payroll 8  432,968 8  1,224.986 8  377,595 8  775,425 8 414.730
Payroll taxes 33.521 97.919 29,527 59,738 33.519
Employee t>eneflts 106,054 415,890 142,654 289,985 97.771

Retirement 29.200 70.406 18,908 61,936 27.831

Advertising - 500 1,912 4,013 818

Bank Charges - - - 4,444 -

Bad debt - 10 - 90 -

Computer cost - 24,540 4,759 3,027 14.926

Contractual 629.045 32,930 230,984 38.696 2.719

Depredation . 28,300 108,291 281.950 .

Dues/registration - 5,277 - 488 868

Duplicating - 8,852 - - -

Insurance 6.714 14,798 23,590 60,672 14,130

Interest. . 7,775 8.022 21.956 .

Meeting and confererKe 8.673 813 2,567 8.104 565

Miscellaneous expense 181 1,695 637 34.793 3,651
Miscellaneous taxes - - - 34.900 -

Equipment purchases 1.292 15,274 - 7.287 -

Offtce expense 24.820 8,499 6.695 11.475 6,458

Postage 97 268 138 53 214

Professional 4,300 1.301 36.095
Staff development erx) training 2,128 1,580 1.678 72 1,904

Subscriptions - - 655 354

Telephone 2,087 2,356 18.479 17.817 2,336

Travel 7,951 16,256 15.412 5.183 29,531

Vehide 2.300 5,225 1.088 37.795 44,426
Rent 24,800 . 150 .

Space costs 194,946 332.351 512.392 1,000

Direct client assistance 3,947,152 214,436 668.284 10.674 23,619

In-kind expenses •
241,499

• •

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT ALLOCATION 5,238,483 2.659,830 1,994.872 2,319.865 721,370

ABocation of management and general expenses 712,284 361,661 271.246 315.436 98,086

8  432.826 8  3,658,530 8  753,068 8  4,411.598

34.195 288,419 58,304 346,723
180.294 1,232,648 111,111 1,343,759
16.181 224,462 71,547 296,009

9.487 16,730 • 16,730

1 ^4,445 7,329 11,774
. 100 . 100

750 48.002 116,846 164,848

116,585 1.050,959 39,743 1,090,702
14,207 432.748 147.367 580,115
1.312 7.945 11.879 19,624

- 8.852 4.155 13,007
7.164 127.068 33.892 160,960

1.610 39.363 164.045 203,408

22,569 43.291 24.957 68,248

2,931 43.888 19.278 63,166

34.900 389 35,289
23.853 1.180 25,033

807 58.754 11.656 70,410
770 24.238 25,008

41.696 90.966 132,664

21,877 29.239 10.590 39,829

1.009 399 1,408

1,589 44.664 52.308 96,972

608 74.941 4.855 79,796

8,568 99.402 13.436 112,838
. 24.950 . 24,950

376 1,041.065 106.866 1,147,931
21,049 4,885.214 4.885,214
. 241.499 - 241.499

894,986 13,829.406 1,880.406 15,709,812

121,693 1.880.406 (1,880.406) .

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 8 5,950,767 8 3.021,491 8 2,266.118 8 2,635.301 819,456 8 1,016,679 8 15.709,812 8  15.709,812

See Independent Auditors' Report
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aouTMWtffrewN community ngnvieM !>«■: aw RgtATgo cowPAwrPn

SCHECXJLe OF eXPCNOrTURCS OF FEOCRAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR FMOED MAY S,

FEDERAL ORANTOR/
PA9S-THROUQH QRAWTQR/PROQRAM TITLB

U.a. DwMrtnwnt at Aarteultur*

Runt Houiing Pfnarvtllon Onni
SpPCtil Suppl*fli*nt«l NuVilioo Program tor

Wemon. IntarK*, and Cntldran (WC)
CMM and AduH Car* Food Program
Food OlMrlOutlon Cluataf

FEDERAL
CFDA

NUMBER

10.433 Diract Fundirtg

PASS-THROUQH
QHANTQR-a NAME

I0.SS7

io.sse
Slalt 01 NH. Otpirtmont «< Haain S Human Sarvtcaa
Slala 01 NH. Daparlmanl o) Education

QRAMTOR-a NUMBER

3403'(S60l-80«

ciooeO'SssoocoO'icesooTja
UnKnoan

FEDERAL
EXPENDfTURE

310.SS8
102.321

Commoday Supplamanial Food Program
Ematgancy Food AaatManca Pregtam (Admin)
CommoditY SupcMmantal Food Program (Food ComtrtoOliaa)

10.S6S
10.S6S
io.ses

Slala ot NH, Dapanmant ol Haalin 8 Human Sarvlcas
CommuMy Acbon Piegram BaPuiap Menimack Ccunaaa
Communay Aeilen Program Balkn«>.Mtrrirttack Couniiaa

010'090'S2eOOOOO-l02'S00734
Unknown

Unknown

2.328
218

SOATB KI.I74

Total U.S. Dapanmani el Agrieuliura 507.328

U3. Oanartnwnl t>l Hmraino aral Urfwn Drraloomrml

Emarganey SotuUona Qrant Program
Emargancy SotuPena Qrant Program

14.231
14.231

Stala ot NH, OHHS. Bureau ol Homalaaa 8 Houatng
Slala ot NH, DHHS. Oiitea ol Human Saivicai

09<»8-9S.9S83IO-717600000-102'S0731
0I0'D42<7927-I02'073I

8  178,983
128.201 307 IM

Supportlva Houalng Program
Shatiar Plua Cara
Continuum ol Cara Program

14 235
14.238
14.267

Suia ol NH, DHHS, Burau ol Homaiata 8 Housing
State ot NH, OHHS, Bureau ol Homaiaas 8 Housing
Suta ot NH, OHHS. Bureau ol Homalaaa 8 Houalng

05<8S<959S8310'7I7600000-I02<50731
0»-95'9S »S83IO'7I7800000-I02 80731
03-95 95 9583lO'7i7eOOOOO-l02S073l

298,162
247,809
174.902

Total U.S. Dapanmant ol Houalng and Urban Oavaleprrwnt t 1.023 077

UR. Par>artmant r.11 ahrtr

WlOA Ctuatar

WlOA Adult Program
WlOA Oitfoealad Worlnr FormiAa Grants

17.258
17.278

Seunam NH Sarvicaa
Souinam NH Sarvicaa

LInknown

Unknown
$  43.633

31.112 i 74.945

Total U.S. Dapanmant ol LaboriWICA Clualar » 74 945

U.9. Daoattrrwnl ol Trananorlatlrrn ParNml Transit Admlnlttrailon IFTAI
Formula Qrsnti lor Rural Araat 20.S09 Slalt el NH. Dapanmant ot Trantpenaiion 04.98<96<9e4010<29IS % 282.669

Transit Sarrleat Programs Cluslsr
Enhanead MabWty ol Sanlon snd Indhrldusls witn DisatilBtlas 20.513 Stilt ol NH, Dapanmant ol Tranaportailen 04 96-96-984010-2916 23.043

Total U.S. Oapsnmanl of Transperlatlen Fadarai Tnnsll AdmlnlKrallen (FTA) 305 71?

Waamtrlzatlon Asatstsnca lor Low-incoma Parsena 81.042 Stala ol m. Ottica el Enaigy 8 Planning OI-02<024010<7706<074-S00587 267.694

Total U.S. Dapanmani ol Enargy } 267.894

11.*. Dananmiml nl ItMltn A Human Barvlt^

Aging Clutlar
Spadal Programs lor Itia Aging. Tllla ill. Pan 6.

Qranti lor Supporpva Sarvlcas and Sanior Canlars
Spabal Programs lor Iha Aging, Tllla III. Pan B.

Onnis lor Suppentva Sarvleat and Sanior Canlara

93.044

93.044

State ol NH, Onict ol Energy 8 Planning

Slate ol NH. DHHS, Buraau ol Elderly 8 Adull Sarvicaa

01.02.024010-7708-074.500587

05-95-48 481010-7672

S  S.298

64.170 69.468

Oranii lo Siaiaa 10 Support Oral Haaitn woi^iorea ActNitiaa
Onjg Fiaa Communltlaa Stvpen Program Orinla

93.236
93.276

Slalt ol NH. DHHS. Oivition ol Family AaalManca
Otraei Fundrng

Unknown

5H79SP01B677.0a
6.929

31,000

TANF <3uaiar
Tamporary AaalManco let Naady Familaa 93.558 SeuinamNH Sarvicaa Unknown 297.962

Low Mcoma Homa Enargy AaalKanca (Fual Aaaiatanea)
Low incoma Homa Errargy Aaalalanca (BWP)

93.568
93.568

Slate ol NH. OniCf ol Enaigy 8 Planning
Stale ol NH. Onica ol Enaigy 8 Planning

01-02-02 024010-77050000-500587
01-02-02-024010-77050000-500587

3.966^76
286.351 4.244.927

Community Saivlcaa BlocK Otant
Communay Sarvicaa Block Qrant ■ OiacraPonary
Htad Stan

93.569
93.570
93.600

Stala ol NH. DHHS. Ov. ol FamUy Aaalaiarwa
Siaia ol NH, OHHS. Div. el FamHy Aaalalanca
Diract Funding

500731

01CH99S9

342.401
22.306

2.598,260

Mtdlcild Ciuatar
Madrcai Aaaiatanea Program 93-778 Stale ol NH, DHHS, Oltica ol Human Sarvicaa 05-65-47.470010-520IOOCO 2.641

Total U.S. Dapanmant ol Haalth < Human Sarvicaa } 7.6IS.9I4

11*. OMvanmMi nt HnmHand Srvriintv

Emargancy Food and Srwlitr National Beard Progrwn 97.024 Swa ol NH, DHHS. 0(l«a ol Hianan Sarvicaa Unknown i 6.670

Total U.S. Dapanmant ol Homaland Saeunly f SeTO

TOTAL 8 9J03.S40

NON-FEDERAL

Stala ol Naw HamptNra PuCAc LttlUiaa Company Hems Enaigy Ataliianca 1 523.161
Staia el Naw Hampahlrt PuUlc UtilUiaa Company Electrical Aniatanca Program t 240,427

Saa Neiaa to Sctiaduit el Eipaitdiiuraa of Fadarai Awarda
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2020

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards {the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
under programs of the federal government for the year ended May 31. 2020. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestern Community Services, Inc., it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent
de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTE 5 SUBRECIPIENTS

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. had no subrecipients for the year ended
May 31, 2020.

32



DocuSign Envelope ID; 70969206-650E-4381-9D57-109A8899F9C2

Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

Profe^sioml Auocuuion

CEBTIFIED PUBUC AOOOUNTANTS
WOLnOJORO . NORTIICONWAY

DOVER . CONCORD

5TRATHAM

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31, 2020, and the related consolidated statements of activities, cash flows,
and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related consolidated notes to the
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 5, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s Internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on. the determination of
consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

ottariL IYLcJ^otullII 4^ Pn^l^^t^<L-^crticuL (X^<i^<^CA^cttucnv

October 5, 2020

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2020.
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responslbilitv

Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responslbilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2020.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing - and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that were not identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based , on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

otumt TYLchoTUitll 4^ Pn^l^4.<^crricut
October 5, 2020
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2020

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated financial
statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies were
prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies, which would be required
to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during
the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs were: U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services: Low-Income Home Energy Assistance, 93.568, and U.S. Department of Energy;
Weatherization Assistance for Low Income Individuals, 81.042. NON-FEDERAL: New
Hampshire Public Utilities Company, Home Energy Assistance and Electrical Assistance
Program.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Southwestern Community Services. Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2020

There were no findings or questioned costs that were required to be reported in the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended May 31 , -2019.
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1  Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Board of Directors - Composition - 202(H

CHESHIRE COUNTY SULLIVAN COUNTY

CONSTITUENT

SECTOR

Anne Beattie

Newport Service Organization

Mary Lou Huffling
Fall Mountain Emergency Food Shelf
Alstead Friendly Meals

Brianna Trombi

Head Start Policy Council
Parent Representative

open

PRIVATE

SECTOR

open David Edkins

Town of Walpole

■

Kevin \A/atterson, chair
Clarke Companies (retired)

Kerry Belknap Morris, M.Ed.
Early Childhood Education

River Valley Community College

PUBLIC

SEaOR

Jay Kahn

State Senator, District 10

Derek Ferland

Sullivan County Manager

Beth Fox

Assistant City Manager/
Human Resources Director

City of Keene

open
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Sept. 2020 - Q
present

Dune 2020 -

Sept. 2020

April 2020 •

Dune 2020

Dan. 2018 -

March 2020

6

Dune 2016 -

Duly 2017

Feb. 2015 -

Dune 2016

Oct. 2013 -

Feb. 2015

8

Southwestern Community Services

Supportive housing cose moncger

Help 40+ clients with short- or long-term rental
assistance subsidies keep their housing, with
meetings that cover:
• budget counseling
•  landlord & tenant rights
• encouraging self-advocacy
• applying for state benefits and/or Social

Security payments
•  tackling "mental labor" tasks (phone calls,

paperwork, etc.)
•  recertification requirements

Hundred Nights Inc.
Cose manager

Helped shelter guests and visitors to Hundred
Nights' resource center:

• apply for public housing assistance

• gather identifying documentation (birth
certificate. Social Security card. ID/license)

• apply for state benefits

•  search for jobs

• connect with outside resources for veterans,
families, mental health, etc.

Overnight supervisor
Ensured shelter guests' comfort and safety
overnight: woke guests each morning and
ensured everyone left the building on time

The Keene Sentinel

General assignment reporter

Covered city government,
housing/homeiessness and local business for a
six-day publication serving 30 towns in
southern New Hampshire

The Kennesaw State University Sentinel
Editor-in-chief

Oversaw the weekly publication's budget,
distribution, advertising, content and staff of 12
student editors and designers

News editor

Determined content, assigned and edited
stories, and oversaw section layout

[l[p[93'&ij'Q0C3

Kennesaw State University. CA
Dec. 2017

• B.S. in communication with a

concentration in journalism

• Graduated with honors

^Q^OCODCaG

First Aid/CPR

Completed Oct. 2020

HUD Lead-based Paint Visual

Assessment course

Completed Oct. 2020

SOAR Online Training for SSDI/SSI

adult applications

In progress

Estimated completion Spring 2021

SQOILILG

Soft Skills:

•  Interpersonal communication

• De-escalation tactics

Hard Skills:

• Written communication

• Research

• Management

• Proficiency with computer

programs (Microsoft Office,

some Adobe programs)
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Liza Regan

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE

Southwestern Community Services, Keene, NH; Augt/st 2017 • Present

Supportive Housing Program Case Manager/Facilities Coordinator, Housing Stabilization Services
Responsibilities include: ctunpus supervisor, case management, seek stable housing for clients, work with program vouchers,
build community partner connections, build landlord connections, act as landlord agent for SOS permanent housing projects,
property maintenance including managing contract bids, estimates and supervise indoor and outdoor facilities work orders

Mount Royal Academy. Sunapee, NH; September 2016 • December 20/7

Drama Director/Substitute Teacher;

Responsibilities included: directing student productions for the community, advertising, fuitdraising and budgeting, classroom

education, organizer and director at 2017 summer arts camp

Woodcrest Village Assisted Living, New London, NH; June 20/7' August 2017
Resident Aide

Responsibilities included: assisting with personal care of residents, evaluating emergency situations, supervision of building
during night shift, clear communication between residents, their families and staff, accurate medical repotting, written and
verbal, basic house-keeping and laundry

Woodlawn Care Center, Newport, NH;

June 2019 - Current

Sub-contracted painter

June 2016 • June 2017

Residential Services Aide

Responsibilities included: laundry, housekeeping, music activities
January 2010 - September 20/2

Licensed Nurse's assistant, activities assistant, kitchen aide

Self- Employment; Januar)> 2004 • December 2017

Home-study tutor, personal assistant, nanny, elderly homecare

Computer Knowledge

Fundraising

Compassionate

Professional

Leadership

Creative

SKILLS

• Self-Motivated

• Client-focused

• Maintenance Coordination

• Excellent communication

• Public Relations

• Time management skills

EDUCATION AND TRAINING

Bachelor of Arts

Liberal Arts, Magdalen College, Warner NH United States 2002

Education: Classical Study, Rhetoric, Logic, Music and Arts, Student Life Leadership, Paid Work Study, Choir Assistant

High School Diploma

Our Lady of Victory, Hamilton Ontario Canada 1998

PROJECTS: Maddie's H^ds founded 2013: collecting and distributing hygiene products and home goods to local outreach
projects, organized and hosted an annual day of respite for NH special needs families for four years
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KAYLA CHRISTENSON
January 2021

EXPERIENCE

OCTOBER 2018 - PRESENT

SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROGRAM COORDINATOR, SOUTHWESTERN

COMMUNTIY SERVICES

Working in collaboration with SHP Case Managers to ensure individuals
maintain their housing
Processing applications, intakes and exits for all supportive housing programs
Fostering and establishing relationships with both community partners and local
landlords

Forecasting program budgets to meet the needs of both our programs and
clients

Working directly with Program Director and BHS staff to ensure program
compliance
Completing recertifications for all of the supportive housing program residents
Collaborating with all Housing Stabilization staff to best meet the needs of the
clients

SUPPORTIVE HOUSING CASE MANAGER, SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY
SERVICES

►  Case management of clients throughout supportive housing programs
.  Processing applications, intakes and exits for all supportive housing programs
►  Fostering and establishing relationships with both community partners and local

landlords
•  Completing recertifications for all of the supportive housing program residents
'  Collaborating with all Housing Stabilization staff to best meet the needs of the

clients

JULY 2018 - SEPTEMBER 2018
CARE COORDINATOR I, HEALTH CARE REHABILITATION SERVICES

•  Facilitated Family Time visits with children in DCF custody and their biological
parents, using the Family Time model

»  Provided coaching to parents in order to help them increase their parenting
skills and to increase parental attunement

-  Working daily with at risk youth and their families
.  Established a working relationship with Vermont DCF social workers as well as

multiple community partners to ensure goals established for parents were being
met as well as coordinating for Family Time visits

I  Daily documentation of Family Time visits, noting where coaching was
needed/used as well as an overall report of each visit as well as any
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communications between myself, social workers, foster parents and bioloqical
parents.

2014-2018

PRODUCTION REP I. C&S WHOLESALE GROCERS
•  Analyzed departmental documents for appropriate distribution and filing.
-  Responsible for accurately entering key field information for 5 000+ documents

per day.
-  Assist in training new hires and helping them reach their daily quotas.

Record and sort incoming mail from warehouses all over the country
Respond to document requests regarding location of specific PO numbers in a
timely fashion.
Daily use of Microsoft Office as well as Kofax,

EDUCATION

BACHELOR OF ARTS PSYCHOLOGY. SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
UN l\/E RSITY

Graduation date January 2020
• GPA 3.78/4.0

•  Concentration in Child and Adolescent Development
•  National Society of Leadership and Success (Sigma Alpha Pi) 2018

H.S DIPLOMA, WORCESTER VOCATIONAL TECHNICAL HIGH SCHOOL
Graduated with honors. 2007.

SKILl^

pf'oblem solver , Exceptional communication skills
MS Wmdows proficient . Self-motivated

•  Conflict resolution
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Lori A. Hathawav

Keene, New Hampshire 03431

Education

Keene State College BA in English May 2009 Keene, New Hampshire

Employment History

2011-Present SCS Data Specialist/Admin Assistant Keene, New Hampshire

Maintenance of daily Data Entiy for several sub-programs
❖ Compiling and analyzing Data Reports as requested
❖ Administration of Housing Security Guarantee Loan Prograjn
*> Co-facilitation of Educational Workshops
*> Presentation of Train-the-Trainer Sessions at annual conference

2009-2011 SCS Administrative Assistant Keene, New Hampshire

<• Research required to determine program eligibility
❖ Creation and maintenance of client flics

Scheduling of client audits
Various administrative and support tasks

2000-2008 PEP-Direct Donor Service Representative Wilton, New Hampshire

❖ Fulfillment of special donor requests for non-protlt organization
Telephone interaction with donors .

*1* Maintenance of donor records

*1* Generation of letters addressing donor issues and complaints

1996-1998 Claire's Assistant Manager Nashua^ New Hampshire

<* Supervised staff
<* Responsible for openmg and closing store

Responsible for balancing registers and bank deposits
♦t* Assisted customers with merchandise selection and purchases

Affiliation and Volunteer Experience

2009-Pres. MUW Pacesetter Committee Member

Kappa Delta Phi NAS, Kappa Gamma Member

SCS

Keene State College
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SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATrONS

•  Proficient in: Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Internet, Outlook, Photoshop,
•  Ability to prioritize in a fast paced environment and to learn new tasks quickly and effectively
•  Dedicated, reliable and responsible
•  Extensive background in Social Services, Property Management, Finance, and Customer Service

EDUCATION

•  B.A Psychology with a specialization in counseling ■ May, 1999
B.S Business Management

Keene State College
Keene, NH 03435

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

Henderson & Bosley Property Management 8/02-Present
President Keene, NH

•  Adhering to NM State housing laws and government housing programs
•  Advertising and marketing of vacant apartments, creating leases, performing credit checks
•  Property inspections and maintenance- including basic carpentry, landscaping etc.
•  Research and management of investment opportunities

Southwestern Community Services 05/16-Present
Director of Housing Stabilization Services Kccnc, NH

•  Designs and implements systems to provide efficient operations of a!) Housing Stabilization
Services programs.

• Manages and leads assigned staff to ensure SCS policies and procedures are followed in a manner
consistent with the organization's mission, values, and culture.

•  Participates in the hiring of new employees and oversees the orientation and training of all assigned
staff

• Maintain compliance with State/Govemment/Agency protocols, procedures, and reporting.

Southwestern Communit}' Services 10/07-05/16
Assistant Director of Housing Stabilization Sen-ices Keene, NH

• Monitor quality of services, operation of assigned programs, facilities, and staff.
•  Process and certify tenant/client applications for all Supportive Housing Programs; facilitate move-

in process; track and collect rents/subsidies utilizing Classic Real Estate Software: track and collect
all match documentation; recertify tenants when necessary and in a timely manner.

•  Maintain compliance with State/Governmeiit/Agency protocols, procedures, and reporting.

Southwestern Communit}' Services 02/03-10/07
Long Term Transitional Housing Program Administrator Kccnc, NH

•  Responsibilities include: Assisting the homeless of Cheshire County with budgeting and referrals to
other needed services; Advocating on behalf of clients to create new networks and improve current
relationships; providing counsel through tough transitions, as well as, creating and maintaining an
environment of success through programs such as Mediation Training, Consumer Credit
Counseling, Psychological Therapy, Parenting Classes, and First Time Homebuyers programs.

•  Basic maintenance of shelter properties and inventory control

•  Responsible to track data and create statistical reports based on information collected to assist in
budget allocations for Southwestern Community Seiwices

Coldwell Banker / Tattcrsall 1/02-3/04

Real Estate Sales Associate Keene, NH

•  Assisting buyers and sellers of real estate through customer/client interaction

•  informing clients/customers of federal and state regulations, financing options, and negotiating
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Data Collector Keene, NH

•  Assured accurate and consistent real-estate assessments with the emphasis in field work
•  Position required strong attention to detail with the emphasis in property measurement and

appraisal as well as requiring strong customer skill by acting as a liaison benveen town assessors
office and the property owner

Monadnct 8/99-8/01
Customer Service Supervisor Keene, NH

•  Responsibilities include maintaining all major accounts and new account data; managing projects
and delegating responsibilities, A/R and A/P reconciliation, Collections of delinquent accounts.

•  Financial Analysis and Trend Monitoring, Billing Systems Analyst
•  Direct mediation and resolution of customer service issues.

AWARDS RECEIVED

•  Delta Mu Delta: National Business Honor Society
•  PsI Chi: National Psychology Honor Society

CONTINUING EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS

04/18/2007 Certified Occupancy Specialist - National Center for Housing Management

09/23/2008 Successful completion of "Landlord and Tenant Law" seminar - Lorniati Educational Services

02/23/2016 HUD Certified Housing Quality Standards Inspector

01/21/2016 Completed 8.5 hours of Nonviolent Crisis Intervention training

04/26/2013 Certification In Fair Housing Law - Granite Slate Managers Association

08/10/2016 Blood Borne Pathogen Training

08/24/2016 6 hours of comprehensive low income housing tax credit training-Johnson Consulting Services, Inc
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Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Key Personnel - COG RRH

Name Job Title Salary % Paid

from this -

Contract

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

Sierra Hubbard Supportive Housing Case Manager $59,571 30% $17,871

Liza Regan Supportive Housing Case Manager $42,841 30% $12,852

Kayla Christenson Supportive Housing Program Coordinator $53,273 50% $26,637

Lori Hathaway Data Specialist/Adrhinistrative Assistant $45,577 2% $912

Craig Henderson Director - HSS $89,801 5% $4,490
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FEB03'21 AnlO:21 RCUO ^ V

Lorl A. S&ibtoeru

ComoUstoeer

Cbrl>tioe L. Sftataalello
Dimior

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03901
603-271.9474 ].<0O«S2.3345 Ext. 9474

Fax: 603-27M230 TDD Access: 1-800-73^2964 www.6hht.Bh.gov

February 1. 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concofxl, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing Sole Source contract with the vendor, listed in bold
below, for the ongoing provision of Permanent Housing programs and Supportive Services to
individuals and families facing homelessness through the Federal Continuum of Care Program,

■by decrea8ingthetot8lpricelimitationby-$732-from-$4G9;586-tO;$4G8:854-withno-6hangetothe-
contract completion date of December 31, 2021 effective upon Governor and Council approval.
100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on December 18, 2019, item
#32.

Vendor
Name

Vendor
Code

Area Served Current
Amount

Increase
(Decrease)

Revised
Amount

G&C
Approval

FIT/NHNH
Inc.,

Manchester.
NH

157730 Statewide $172,020 $172,020 0; 12/18/19,
Item #32

Southwestem
Community
Services,

Inc.. Keene.
NH

,177511
Cheshire &

Sullivan
Counties

$237,566 ($732) $236,834 0:12/18/19,
Item #32

Total: $409,686 ($732) $408,854

Funds are available In the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

SEE ATTACHED FISCAL DETAILS

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the coritracts were originally approved as sole
source and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source.

TTie Dtporintnt of Htolth and Human Servicts' Mission is to join ccmmunilUs and fomilits
in providing opportunities [or citaens to achieve health and independence.
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His Excellency. Oovemor Chrl8topr>ef T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundi

Pago 2 of2

The purpose of this request is to adjust the price limitation to reflect the amount of funding
granted by the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to provide a Permanent
Housing program that delivers rental and leasing assistance, service access, supportive senrices
artd associated administrative services to individuals and families who face chronic homelessness
in order to improve the atnlity of participants to live more independently.

This program serves individuals and families experiencing homelessness who would
otherwise likely be left in unsafe situations without permanent housing. Approximately seven (7)
households experiencing homelessness in Cheshire and Sullivan counties will be served from
January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021.

Using the Housing First model, vendors develop Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans and facilitate each participant's movement into 8ustair>ed permanent housing. Additionally,
vendors work to maximize each participant's ability to live more independently by providing
connections to community and mainstream services.

The Departrtient will monitor contracted services using the following tools;

•  Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semlrannual-statisticaLiBpQrts.-tnchidiDg-varioua demographic InfojmalijttCLJmd-
income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

• All vendors funded through these contracts will report through the timely and
accurate entry of data Into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information
System. This will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter
and housing programs.

As referenced In Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2..
Renewal, of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is not exercising
(ts option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department may be liable
for funding that has not been made available for services described in the contract.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267. FAIN # NH0074L1T001907.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

\M
.ori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

CONTINUUM of CARE, RAPID RE-HOUSING PROGRAM FINANCIAL DETAIL

05*95^2-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,

HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

100S Federal Funds, 0% General Funds, 0% Other Funds (U.S. Department of Houslr>g end Urban Development, Federal Continuum of Care Program)

FIT/NHNH. Inc. Vendor#157730

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title JobNumlaer • Current Amount

increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42308612 $86,010.00 $0.00 $86,010.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42308612 $86,010,00 $0.00 $86,010.00

Sub Total $172,020,00 $0.00 $172,020.00

Southwestern Community Services, inc.
S

VerxJor #177511

tale Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Arnount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42308612 $59,392 $0.00 $59,392.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services . 42308612 $118,763 -$366.00 $118,417.00
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42308612 $59,391 .  .$366.00 $59,025.00

Sub Total $237,566.00 •$732.00 $236,834.00

Overall Total $409,586.00 -$732.00 $408,854.00

Southwesiern Commur^ly Services, Inc.
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-19-A01

Financial Detail Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing Program contract is
by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and Southwestern Cornmunity Services, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on December 18. 2019 (item #32), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract ar)d in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to decrease the price limitation to support continued delivery of these
services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$236,834.

2. Modify Exhibit B-1, Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B-1 Amendment #1, Budget,
which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

South\A>estern Community Services. Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-19-A01 Page 1 of 4

Contractor Initials

Dale

-09

JAl
ViV2021
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Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-t9-A01 Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date
1/14/2021
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.-
This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written t>elow,

1/21/2021

Date

1/14/2021

Date

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

—OeeuS^nM by:

SantanSello

Title: Director

Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

•0«<uSlgn*4 by:

X Title: ceo

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-19-A01

Amendment #1

Page 3 oM
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuSjgntd by:

1/31/2021

Date^ N^ir^'^rfne Pinbs
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Slate of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

/

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date ' Name:
)  Title:

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. Amendment #1

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-19-AOl Page 4 of 4
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M fcidgel Awdwi ei

SCS RapM Ra-Hous>ng

CoC Funds

AcUvttvNanM
Rental AssHtanca

•  5FY20 - 1/1/20-6/30/20
TOTAL PROGRAM COST

BUDGET YTO MONTHLY

CONTRACTOR SHARE

BUDGET YTO MONTHLY

BHS SHARE

BUDGET MONTHLY

SupponNu Saniccs

Adminisirauon

47.«M

,25% ReouirM Match

TOTAL HUO f^UND&BALlQSF'

SPr21'- 7/l/2O</30/21 .
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY
ReniN AssHcanca t  e4.ses 1- . » 1. - • S • S t  «42ea a ■ a

Suppoity* Sarvicas t  2I.11S t t i ■ S t  21.11a t -
Adminlsndon S  2.7» » S  2.73} t • »• » s -•
25% Reourad Match t  »2» I . • S  30290 } t s .

s  i4a.m t t  3xa» % ■ t }  .ii$.ae2 t :• a

Actlv<>y Name
R

SfY22 • 7/1/21-12/31/21.
TOTAL PROGRAM COST

BUDGET YTO MONTHLY

CONTRACTOR SHARE

BUDGET YTO MONTHLY

BHSSHARE

BUDGET YTO MONTHLY
ental Assisanea

Supportva San*cas
AfliiiafaBefan

25% Raqifiraa Match

tOtAL HUO funos«alanES~

47.100

Activity Name

. TOTAL 1/1/20-12/31/21 •.
TOTAL PROGRAM COST

BUDGET YTO MONTHLY

CONTRACTOR SHARE

BUDGET YTO MONTHLY

BHS SHARE

BUDGET YTO MONTHLY
Rental AssHtanca

Supportva Saryicee'

AdRrinisBation

25% Raouirad Match

TCTXTfiDZTTDHBSroCOiSr

Total WTO Match 5 21M14

SotCMMfn Coinmrer SwHcaa. Ine.
SS-JtoaeKS-OLPCRMVifrAin

Aag* I el I
.Gl-V«n)e< MM:)

1/14/7071



DocuSign Envelope ID; 70969206^50E-4381-9D57-109A88g9F9C2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4B38332B-O322-409A-92FB-74ECO9A50O74

5^ /

Jeffrey A. Meyrn
Cenmliiloacr

CbrUtlnc l« Stateeicllo

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMICS HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271.9474 I.SOO-852.334S Eit 9474

Fix: 60>37M230 TOO Access: l-SOO-735'3964 ivww.dhbs.oh.gov

November 22. 2019

His Exceller^cy, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to enter into sole source agreements with the vendors listed below to provide Permanent
Housing programs and Supportive Sen/ices to individuals and families facing homelessness through the
Federal Continuum of Care Program in an amount not to exceed $409,586. effective January. 1.2020, or
upon Governor arid Executive Council approval, whichever is later, through the completion dates
indicated in the table below. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor U Location
Effective

Date

Completion
Date

Total

Amount

FIT/NHNH, Inc. 157730-8001 Statewide 01/01/20 12/31/20 $172,020

Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.

177511-R001
Cheshire &

' Sullivan

Counties

01/01/20 12/31/21
$237,566

t

Total $409,586

Funds are available in the following account for Slate Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal. Year 2022. upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and
adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

SEE ATTACHED FISCAL DETAILS

EXPLANATION

These requests are sole source because federal regulations require the Department to Identify
vendors with whom the Department wilt contract during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program
renewal application process, prior to the grant award being issued. The U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) reviews the applications and subsequently awards funding based on its
criteria. The application process and timing of grant terms do not align with state or federal fiscal years.
The start date of a grant is based on the month in which each grant's original federal agreement was
issued. This results in Continuum of Care Program grant start dates, and subsequent renewal approval
requests, occurring in various months throughout the year.

The purpose of these requests Is to provide Permanent Housing programs that deliver rental and
leasing assistance, sen/ice access, supportive services and associated administrative services to
individauls and families who face chronic homelessness in order to improve the ability of participants to
live more independently.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

Collectively, these vendors will provide permanent housing and supportive services to a minimum
of twenty-six (26) participants from January 1. 2020 through December 31, 2021.

The attached agreements represent two (2) of thirty (30) total annual agreements, many of which
have renewal dates dispersed throughout the calendar year. The thirty (30) agreements are with vendors
who are located throughout the state to ensure ongoing, statewide delivery of housing services through
New Hampshire's Continuum of Care Program.

Using the Housing First model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans, the vendors will facilitate participants' movement into sustained permanent housing while providing
connections with community services to maximize the participant's ability to live more independently.

HUD established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities in their efforts to
address the problems of housing instability and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and
strategic fashion. The Continuum of Care serves three main purposes:

(1) A strategic plannlr>g process for addressing homelessness in the community.

(2) A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing homelessness
on a year-round basis.

(3) An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services for individuals
and families who face homelessness.

The Bureau ensures contract compliance and vendor performance in the following ways:

(1) Annual compliance reviews are performed and include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements. '

(2) Statistical reports are submitted by the vendor on a semi-annual basis which include various
demographic information and income and expense reports. Including match dollars.

(3) Each vendor Is required to maintain timely and accurate data entry in the New Hampshire
Homeless Management Information System, which is the pnmary reporling tool for outcomes
and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these contracts.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of the attached two (2) year agreement with Southwestern
Community Services, Inc., the parties have the option to extend contract services for up to two (2)
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

As evident in Exhibit C-1 of the proposed agreement with FIT/NHNH. Inc.. there are no options
for contract renewal.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize these requests, supportive services for
individuals and families who face homelessness in the areas served by the vendors may not be available
in their communities, additionally there may be an increase in demand for services placed upon each
region's local welfare authorities. It may also result in Individuals and families becoming homeless.

Area served: Statewide, a minimum of twenty-six (26) individuals and/or families will be served
collectively between the two proposed agreements.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
anri the Honorable Council
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Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. Office of Community Planning and Development. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFDA) #14.267. FAIN #s: NH0081L1T001805 and NH0074L1T001806.

In the event that the Federal funds become no longer available. General funds will not be
requested to support these programs.

Respectfully submitted.

JeHcey A. MJeiwy A. Meyers
Commissioner

Tt\t Ocporiminl of Htollh end Hnnion Services'Mission is to join coinniunities dud (om iliet
in providing ofiporlnniiies for ciLizens lo ocliietx heollh and inde/Kudcnce.
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FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

OS-9$-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS;

HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

FrrmKNH, Inc. (Vcndor«157730-B001)

(Home et Lett. Permentni Houilne Program)

Stata FItcal Year Class/Account Class Tills Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts fer Program Services TBD S86.010.00

2021 ' 102-500731 Contracts lor Program Services TBD S88.010.00

Sub-Total S172.020.00

Southweitam Community Servlcat, Inc. (Varxlor 177511-R001)
(Rapid Re-Houalng. Permanent Housing Program)

Stata Fiscal Yaar Claaa/Account Cisss Tills Job Number Amount

2020 .  102-500731 Contrscis hf Program Services TBD S59.392.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts tor Program Services TBD Si 18.783.00

2022 102-500731 '/..pon^a^.tor Program Services TBD $59,391.00

- Sut>-Total S237.5M.Q0

Grand Total S409.588.00

Conilnuum ol Care Permanent Housir>g
SS-2020-BHS-04.PERMA Page 1 ol1
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FORM NUMBER P07 (venlon 5/8/15)
Subjeci: CQniiflUym flf Care. Rapid Re-Hominy. Permanem Housinfl Program. SS-2Q20-BHS.04-PERMA-I9

Notice: This ngTrcment and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that Is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency end agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 Slate Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Southwestern Community Services, inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

63 Community Way
P.O. Box 603

Keene. NH 03431-0603
1.5 Controcior Phone

Number

(603)352.7512

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010.7927.

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

December 31, 2021

1.8 Price Limitation

$237,566

1.9 Contracting OfRcer for Slate Agency
Nathan D. White. Director

I.IO Slate Agency Telephone Number
603-271.9631

l.ll Cor^ltMior Signature 1.12 Nome and Title of Contractor Sigiuiory

1.13 Atknowledgemeni: State of .County of ^

On 11 ■ T " . before the undersigned officer, personoll
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1. I I, end ac
indicated in block 1.12.

ntShire.

i appeared the person identified in block 1.12, orsotisfociorily
cnowledged thai s/he executed this document in the capacity

1.13.1 SignaturtofNotary Pub^lC^^Justiceofthe Faoce

fc„n Ai A. TOMUN. >istloe of the Poaeo
1.13.2 Name and fVil^ of Notary or Justice of the Peace My Corwnbrtoo Expires AprtJ 5, 2022

1.14 State Agenc^^jflnaiure 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Approvallby tT^N.H. Depa/lmenl of Adminisitatioil, Division of Personnel Of apf^icabU) '

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Anomey General (Form, Substance end Execution) 0/opplicable)

1.18 Appro([gt^y the Governor and Executive Council OfoppVtcabit)

By: On:

pflgo I or4

Qn
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF contractor/services TO
BE PERFORMED. The Suteof NewHempshire, eciing
through (he agency identified in block i.l ("State"), engages
contractor identified In block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall pcrfonri, the worit or sole of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described In the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Slate of New Hampshire, if
applicable, (his Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hercundcr. shall become effective on the date the Governor

and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If (he Contractor commerces the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Efreciive Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including wiihoui limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF agreement.

Norwithstonding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the Stale hereurtder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hercundcr, ore
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation '
of funds, end in no event shell the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, tfever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving (he Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 In the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract prke, method of payment, and terms of
payment ere identified and more particularly described in
E)(HIBIT 8 which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding ony provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of oil payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth In block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performencc of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with ell statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
whkh impose any obligoiion or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure thai persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex.
handicap, sexual orlentaiion, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 I f this Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal ..
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the Slate of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor funher agrees to
permit the Slate or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascenaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that ell personnel engaged tn the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, end shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for .o period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, ftrm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform (he Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or ofriciol. who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

0f4

Contractor Iniiials

Date
9z

'thid
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Agreement. This provision shetl survive lennination of this
Agreemeni.
7.3 The Conirwiing Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, sholl be the Stele's represenietive. In the event
ofany dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure lo perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreemeni.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or.more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give (he Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring It 10 be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreemeni and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contntcior has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
(he Contrttctor any damages (he State suffers by reason ofany
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies ot'law or In equity, or both.

9. DATAyACCESS/CONFIDENTIALlTV/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in (his Agreemeni, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited lo, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of (he State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page 3

10. TERM INATION. In the event of an early termination of
(his Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (IS) days after the dale of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the dale of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the anachcd EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

ihe perfonmance of (his Agreement the Contractor is in ell
respects an independent contrecior. and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Slate or receive any benefits, workers' eompcnsation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSlCNMEfVTfDELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of (he State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of (he State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless (he State. Its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of(or which may be
claimed lo arise out of) (he acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding (he foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constimte a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
r^rved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of b^ily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than SI .OOO.OOOper occurrence and S2,000,000
aggregate; end
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of (he property.
14.2 The policies described in subporagreph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
InsurarKc, and issued by insurers licensed In the State of New
Hampshire.

of 4

Contractor initials

Date "hhH
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14.3 The Contrector shall furnish lo the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccrtific8ie(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certirica(e(s) of
insurance for all rencwal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than ihir^ (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certiricaie(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificatefs) of
iruurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thiny (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modincaiion of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor Is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 'A
("Workers' Compensatiof\").
15.2 To the extent the Contrector is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 261 ̂A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes (o
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contrector shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
icr her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A ond any
applicable renewol(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Controcior, or
any subcomrocior or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and ell of (he •
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part ofthe Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Slates Post Office addressed to (he parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by on instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council ofthe State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State taw, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be consinied in accordance with the
laws of the Stote of New Hampshire, end Is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of (he parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the panics to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The ponies hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreemeni
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, constniciion or meaning of (he
provisions of this Agreemeni.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the anached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. Inihe event any of (he provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any stale or federal law, the remaining
provisioru of this Agreemeni will remain in full force and
effeci.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterpans, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Rapid Re-HousIng, Permanent Housing Program

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
10S Pleasant Street ■

Concord, NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports (BHS). has the right to modify service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR 578.i03(b). US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUO), the HUD Office of the Inspector
General, and the Comptroller -General of the United States, or any of their authorized
representatives, must have the right of access to all books; documents, papers, or other records
of the Contractor that are pertinent to the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant, in order to make
audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the
required retention period, but last as long as the records are retained.

1.5. The Contractor shall adhere to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws, and comply
with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, as detailed

•  in the applicable Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application approved by HUD.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide sen/ices according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR 578 and other written, appropriate HUD policies and directives.

1.7. The Contractor shall ensure all programs are licensed to provide client level data into the New
Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH
HMIS policy, including specific information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and
time required for data entry. Refer to Exhibit K for information security requirements and Exhibit
I for privacy and security requirements for protected health information.

1.8. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions related to this contract from
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

1.9. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program, which is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System for all projects funded by the CoC
Program, Emergency Solutions Grants Program, and Housing Opportunities for Persons with
AIDS Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule, 24 CFR 578.
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2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing program that Is targeted
to serve seven (7) homeless, eligible households in Cheshire and Sullivan counties per year with
a potential to serve fourteen (14) homeless, eligible households over the two (2) year contract
period, which includes but is not limited to:

2.2.1. Utilizing the Housing First model, ensuring:

2.2.1.1. Barriers to entering housing are not Imposed beyond those required by
regulation or statute: and

2.2.1.2. Participation will only terminate for the most severe reasons, once available
options have been exhausted to help a participant maintain housing; and

2.2.2. Developing of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant at
intake and, at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining
the skills necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and shall establish and maintain
sufficient records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance,
including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation
related to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable
evidence of homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.S00(b);

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain

records that establish "at risk of homelessness' status of each individual or

family who receives CoC homelessness prevention assistance, as Identified in
24 CFR 576.500(c); and

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall
maintain documentation of each program participant who moved to a different
CoC due to imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, as defined in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall
retain documentation that includes, but is not limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, only if the original violence is not atready
documented in the program participant's case file. This may be
written obsen/ation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the victim has sought assistance;
medical or dental records: court records or law enforcement records;
or written certification by the program participant to whom the
violence occurred or by the head of household; and
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2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence,
dating violence, or sexual assault or stalking, which would include
threats from a third-party, such as a friend or family member of the
perpetrator of (he violence. This may be written observation by the
housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from
whom the victim has sought assistance; current restraining order;
recent court order or other court records; law enforcement report or
records; communication records from the perpetrator of the violence
or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence,
including emails, voicemalls. text messages, end social media posts;
or a written certification by the program participant to whom the
violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing
assistance where rent or an occupancy charge Is paid by the program
participant, the Contractor shall keep the following documentation of annual
income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUO and completed by the
Contractor;

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents, which may include the most recent wage
statement, unemployment compensation statement, public benefits
statement, and bank statements for the assets held by the program
participant and income received before (he date of the evaluation; and

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written
' statement by a relevant third party, which may include an employer
or a government benefits administratof, or the written certificdtlon by
the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most
recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are
unobtainable, the written certification by the program participant of
the amount of Income that the program participant is reasonably
expected to receive over the three (3) month period following the
evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status
or at-risk-of-homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor shall keep
records for each program participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant,
including evidence that the Contractor conducted an annual
assessment of services for those program participants that remain in
the program for more than a year and adjusted the service package
accordingly, and including case management services as provided in
24 CFR 578.37{a)(1)(ii)(F): and

2.3.1.5.2. Where appiicable, compliance with the termination of assistance
requirement In 24 CFR 578.91.
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2.3.1.6. Housing Standards. The Contractor shall retain documentation of compliance
with the housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b). including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor shall document the types of supportive
sennces provided under the Contractor's program artd the amounts spent on
those services. The Contractor shall keep documentation that the records were
reviewed at least annually and that the service package offered to program
participants was adjusted as necessary.

2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:

2.4.1. The Oraanlzationai conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c):

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(b); and

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95fdl.

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest
policy that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, including records supporting any
exceptions to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Participation requirements In accordance vrith 24 CFR 578.75(g);

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements In accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b):

2.6.3. Affirmatively Furtherino Fair Housing bv maintaining copies of all mar1<eting. outreach,
and other materials used tp inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24
CFR 578.93(c);

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified
by HUD: and

2.6.6. Procurement Requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentlalitv. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security requirements for HMIS
data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any Individual or family who
applies for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and
confidential;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care
funds are not to be made public, except with written authorization of the person
responsible for the operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public,
except as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and
consistent with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made
by microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds
are retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment
by the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess
of the five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation. /Oy>n
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3. Program Reportlno Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports;

3.1.1. Annual Performance Reoorl fAPRI: Within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion
Date, an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the
Project Activities, showing in particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project In
the manner proposed in the application submitted to HUO for the relevant fiscal year
NOFA. The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State, and submitted to
the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State in compliance wiih NH Hfi^lS policy.

4. Contract Admlnlstrfltlon

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS. including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal
laws! To the extent possible. BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings
five (5) working days In advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

6. Refformance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth In the applicable HUO Project
Application #SF-424.

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable
HUD regulations including, but not limited to the following:

5.1.1.1. httos://www.hudexchanoe.info/pfOQrams/coc/svstem-DerfofTnance-

measures/#quidance:

5.1.1.2. 24 CFR 578; Continuum of Care Program; and

5.1.1.3. Public Law 102-550.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to ail performance measures as detailed in the
Annual Performance Report Sectlor) 3. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or designee, may observe performance, activities end
documents under this Agreement.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall implement and participate in the Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in
Section 2 Scope of Work. Subsection 2.1., above, in accordance with the CoC Program interim
rule, 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a permanent housing program as outlined in Section 2 Scope of
Work, Subsection 2.2., above, and other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed in Section 3.. Program
Reporting Requirements, above.

6.4. The Contractor shall be subject to all performance measures as outlined in Section 5.
Performance Measures, above.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Rapid Re-Houslna. Permanent Housing Prooram Funding

1.1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price
Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

1.2. This Agreement is funded with general funds and/or federal funds made available under the
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA). as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFDA#: 14.267

1.2.4. FAIN#: NH0074L1T001806

1.2,6. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Title; Continuum of Care. Rapid Re-Housing, Permanent Housing Program

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. January 1, 2020 - December 31. 2021: not to exceed $237,566

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;

1.2.8.1. Administrative Expenses: $5,470

1.2.8.2. Supportive Services; $42,232

1.2.8.3. Rental Assistance: $189.864

1.2.8.4. Total program amount: $237,566

1.2.8.5. Vendor Match (25%) $60,759 ■

1.3. The Contractor shall provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure- to meet (he scope of services may jeopardize the funded
Contractor's current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report; The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance
with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of
said report to the State at the following address:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only In accordance with
procedures, requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.
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2.3. If the Contractor Is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200. the Contractor shall
submit one (1) copy of an audited financial report to (he Department utilizing the guidelines set
forth by the Comptroller General of the United States in "Standards for Audit of Governmental
Organizations. Program Activities, and Functions." within ninety (90) days after contract
completion date.

3. Prolect Costs: Payment Schedule: Review bv the State

3.1. Project Costs: As used In this Agreement, the term "Project Costs' shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment In accordance with Public
Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth In 2 CFP part 200 as revised from
time to time and with the rules, regulations, end guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 578.39
through 578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components:
permanent housing: transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and. in some cases,
homeless prevention. Administrative costs are eligible for all components. All components are
subject to the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project
found in 24 CFR 578.87(c).

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements shall be documenied with each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor shall match all grant funds except for leasing funds, with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources.

3.3.4. The Contractor shall utilize cash match for the cost of activities that are eligible under
subpart 0 of 24 CFR 578. The Contractor shall:

3.3.4.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy the
match requirement in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.4.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution Is counted.

3.3.4.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how (he values of third party
In-kind contributions were derived.

3.3.4.4. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Payment of Prelect Costs:

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures Incurred in the fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be in accordance
with the approved line items as specified in Exhibit 8-1, Budget, and as defined by HUD
under the provisions of Public Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations, subject to
the availability of sufficient funds.

3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 4.. Expense Eligibility, below. The Contractor must
have written approval from the State prior to billing for any other expense
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3.4.3. Payment of Project Costs shall be made through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing
Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550). In an amount
and time period not to exceed as specified in section 1.2 Exhibit 6.

3.4.4. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.4.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs. Including the final
reimbursement request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the fifteenth
(lSth) day of each month, for the previous month, and accompanied by an
invoice from the Contractor for the amount of each requested disbursement
along with a payment request form and any other documentation required, as
designated by the State, which shall be completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.4.2. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient
funds are available.

3.4.4.3. The Contractor shall Keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

3.4.4.4. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Paragraph 2.1.2.; above,
all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to:
housinQsuDPortsinvoices@dhhs.nh.QOv

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report. Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the State may
review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any Items of expenses that are not
determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures,
and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, informing the
Contractor of any such disallowance.

3.5.3. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, It shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this agreement are
subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed in
Exhibits A and 8, or NH-HMIS data entry requirements have not been satisfactorily
completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

4. Expense EllalblHtv

4.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care Program funds specified In this Exhibit 8 from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for contract sen/ices.

4.2. Qperatina Expenses:

4.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:
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'4.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing.

4.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car).

4.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the
housing (provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the
system and expected replacement cost).

4.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the units or
area is paid for with grant funds.

4.2.1.5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water.

4.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.

4.2.2. Ineligible costs include;

4.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project.

4.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only facilities.

4.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repairing
the housing are included in the lease.

4.3. SuDDortive Services

4.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs shall comply with all HUD regulations in 24 CFR
578.53, and are available to individuals actively participating in the permanent housing
program.

4.3.2. Eligible costs shall include:

4.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of the assessment required by
578.53(a) (2).

4.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs are eligible
and include truck rental and hiring a moving company.

4.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the
program participant($) are eligible costs.

4.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing
child-care vouchers, for children from families experiencing homelessness,
including providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated
developmental activities are eligible.

4.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible.

4.3.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs'of establishing and operating
em^oyment assistance and job training programs are eligible,- including
classroom, online and/or computer instruction, on-the-job instruction, services
that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or
increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program participants in employment assistance and job training programs is also
en eligible cost.

4.3.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is
eligible.
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4.3.2.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program
participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible.

4.3.2.9. Legal sen/ices. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys and by
person(s) under the supen/islon of licensed attorneys, for advice and
representation In matters that interfere with homeless individual or family's ability
to obtain and retain housing.

4.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may
never have been learned or have been lost during course of physical or mental
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function
independently in the community. Component life skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed items, nutrition, the use of
public transportation, and parent training.

4.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
mental health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals.
Component services are crisis interventions; counseling; individual, family, or
group therapy sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or
explanations about the use and management of medications; and combinations
of therapeutic approaches to address multiple problems.

4.3.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals.

4.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of
providing Immediate support and Intervention, as well as identifying potential
program participants, are eligible.

4.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant intake
and assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual counseling, and
drug testing are eligible. Inpatient detoxification and other inpatient drug or
alcohol treatment are ineligible.

4.3.2.15. Transportation Services are described in 24CFR 578(e) (15).

4.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility deposits.
Utility deposits must'be one-time, paid to utility companies.

4.3.2.17. Direct pfovlslon of services. If the service described In 24CFR 578.53(e) (1)-(16)
of this section Is being directly delivered by the recipient or subrecipienl, eligible
costs for those services are described in 24 CFR 578(e) (17).

4.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Care
program funds.'Staff trairiing and costs of obtaining professional iicensure or
certifications needed to provide supportive services are not eligible costs.

4.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to (he same extent for program
participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with
HIV/AIOS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.

4.4. Rental Assistance

4.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals and families.
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4.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is already receiving
rental assistance, or living In a housing unit receiving rental assistance, or operating
assistance through other federal. State, or local sources.

4.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance v/ith the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as set forth In 24 CFR 578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51.
and may be;

4.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

4.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

4.4.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

4.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

4.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the landlord, in addition
to the security deposit and payment of first month's rent.

4.4.6. Rentel assistance will only be provided for a unit rf the rent is reasonable, as determined
by the Contractor, in relation to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units,
taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities. facillHes, and management
and maintenance of each unit.

4.4.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one month's rent to pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant. For Leasing
funds only: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the landlord from
security deposits.

4.4.8. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction In which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.-

4.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance: Tenant-
based. Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described by HUO in 24
CFR 578.51.

4.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance Is rental assistance in which program
parlicipants choose housing of an appropriate size In which to reside. When
necessary to facilitate the coordination of supportive services, recipients and
subrecipients may require program, participants to live in a specrftc area for their
entire period of participation, or in a specrftc structure for the first year and in a
specific area for. the remainder of their period of participation. Short and medium
term rental assistance provided under the Rapid Re-Housing program
component must be tenant based rental assistance.

4.4.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance Is provided through contracts between the
recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, nonprofit
organization, or a community mental health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in housing owned or
leased by the sponsor.

4.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance Is provided through a contract with the owner of
an existing structure, where the owner agrees to tease the subsidized units to
program participants. Program participants will not retain rental assistance If
they move.
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4.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, -or tenant-based rental assistance, program
participants must enter Into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year,
which is terminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable
upon expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long,'except on prior
notice by either party.

4.5. Administrative Costs:

4.5.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

4.5.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through 578.57, because
those costs are eligible as part of those activities.

4.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitoring and evaluation. These costs include, but
are not limited to. necessary expenditures for the following:

4.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or other
staff engage in program administration.

4.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the program of each
person whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program
involve program administration assignments, or the pro rata share of the
salary, wages, end related costs of each person whose job includes any
program administration assignments. The contractor may only-use one
of these rnethods. for each fiscal year grant. Program administration
assignments include the following: •

4.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amendments to
those budgets and schedules;

4.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements;

4.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing interagency agreements and agreements with
subrecipients and Contractors to carry out program activities;

'4.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and compliance with
program requirements;

4.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

4.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit artd monitoring findings;

4.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related to the
program submission to HUD;

4.5.1.2.1.1.8. Evaluating program results against stated objectives;

4.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program Include such assignments as those described
In sections 4.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 4.5.1.2.1.1.8. above. Exhibit B.

4.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs incurred for official business in carrying out the program;
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4.5.1.2.1.1.11. Administrative services performed under third party contracts or
agreements, including such services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit services;

4.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for administration of the
program, including such goods and services as rental or purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

4.5.1.2.1.1.13.Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of Care trainings; and

4.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the environmental review
responsibilities under 24 CFR 578.31.

4.6. Leasino:

4.6.1. When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be
used to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions
thereof, to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3)
years. Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the
contractor, their parent organization, any other related organizatjon(s). or organizations
that are members of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless
HUD authorized an exception for good cause.

4.6.2. Requirements:

4.6.2.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or part of a structure
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable in relation to rents.being charged
in the area for comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed
rents currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted
space.

4.6.2.2. Leasing individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for individual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable in relation to rents being charged
for comparable units, taking Into account the location, size. type, quality,
amenities, facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may not
exceed rents currently being charged for comparable units, and the rent paid
may not exceed HUD-determined fair market rents.

4.6.2.3. Utilities, if electricity, gas, and water are included in the rent, these utilities may
be paid from teasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs are operating costs, except for supportive service facilities. If the structure
is being used as a supportive senrice facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.

4.6.2.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits, in an amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided to the .landlord
In addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's rent.

4.6.2.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and subleases
are required as specified in 24 CFR 578.77(a).

4.6.2.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent from
program participants must be calculated as provided In 24 CFR 578.77.
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4.6.2.7. Program Income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
participants are program income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR
578.97.

4.6.2.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8)

4.6.2.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in comparison
to rents charged In the area for similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.

4.6.2.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUO-determined fair
market rents.

4.6.2.11. The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly; funds may not be given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

4.6.2.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

4.6.2.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to itself.

4.6.2.14. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing-is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or services.

4.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24
CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone. Internet access,
cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

4.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this contract, or counted as
match, complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

6. Contractor Financial Manaoement System

5.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
v^ich assure proper disbursement of. and accounting for. grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

5.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.
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Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that ail funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to etiglble
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
egrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination ehail be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, potides and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination; Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for thai purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information r>ece$sary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The

. Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that alt applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form end that each applicant or re-applicant shaH be Informed of his/her right to afair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kichbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make e payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sul>-conlract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contra^ contained In the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to Ihe Effective Date of the Contract
end no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the Individual applies for services or (except es otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shell be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or et a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by (he Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, (he Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursementin

excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor iri which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitt^ to determine the eltgibiiity of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ir>eligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

6. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants end agrees lo maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

6.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting aD costs
and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Contract, and ell
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Conlract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
property reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, end
to include, without limitation, ail ledgers, books, records, end original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and olher records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall Include all records of applicBtionand
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibitity for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submttted to Ihe Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. M^icai Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on eech patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of Ihe
egency ftscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" end the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health ertd Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition,to and not In any way In limitation of obligations of the Contract, it Is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
' Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such en
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of Ihe services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by Ihe Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state taws and the regulations of
the Depahmeni regarding the use end disclosure of such information, disclosure may bo made lo
public officials requiring such Information ir> connection with (heir official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; end provided further, thai
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of Ihe Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports althefollowing
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Firtanclal Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and rK>n-Bllowabie expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other Information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report; A final report shall be submitted wHhin Ihiity (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. Tha Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
end other informetion required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder. the Contract end all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract ere to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

13^1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from OHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The OHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, Including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contractwithout
prior written approval from OHHS.

15. Operation of Faculties: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with ell taws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public OfTicer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be requir^ for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with ail rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
taws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor vrill provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR). If it has •
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has SO or
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more employees, ft will maintain a current E£OP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $2S,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 empk)yees. regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide en
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying It is not required to subrhit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and rr>edicel and educational instHulions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms ere evailable at: httpi/Avww.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited Engtlsh Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improvipg Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nat'ionalorigin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Streets Act of 1968 end Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to ils programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to ell contracts that exceed the Simptified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections establishedat
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for'Fiscal Year. 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908. .

(b) The Contractor shaQ inform its employees In writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, es described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquistiion Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in ell
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: OHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retein the responsibility end accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability lo perform the delegated
function($). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's perlormance is not adequate. Subcontractors ere subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function lo a subconiractor. the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities ar>d how sanctions/revocation will be managed If (he subcontractor's
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

EjdUbll C - special Provlaiorta Contractor NUgl

oonvia Psfle4 ol 5 Oaie ft /l /l^



DocuSign Envelope ID: 70969206^50E-4381-9D57-109A8899F9C2

DocuSign Envelope 10:4838332B-D322-409A-92FB-74ECD9A50D74

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

19.4. Provide to DHHS en annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsend
responsibilities, end when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at Its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deftclencies or areas.for improvement ere identified, ihe Contrector shell
take corrective ection.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS: Shell mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules end orders.

20.2. ■DEPARTMENT; NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department end containing a description of the services end/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Oeparlment and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERALySTATE LAW: Wherever federal or slate laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shad be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be emervJed or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

EimiUi C - Special Provtiiona Ccntrsctor inCials
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.  REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P«37, Ooneral Provisions

1.1. Section 4. CondHional Nature of Aoreement. ts feoiaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all ̂ ligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in pan,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modiftes the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement ar>d the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall Ihe
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of e reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(5) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account in the event furxJs are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10, Termination. Is amended by adding the following language;

10.1 The Stale may terminate the Agreement at any lime for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor wrinen notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to Ihe Stale a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to riieet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate wHh the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan Including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the tetmlnation of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested. '

10.4 In Ihe event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a melhod of notifying clients end other affected Individuals
about the transition. The Conlractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the Slate as described ebove.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department resen/es Ihe right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

cuoHKSAiMia
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Generel Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 51S1 <5160 of the Drug*Free Woiicplace Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12Gfthe General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE 1 • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTfMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OP EDUCATION .CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE . CONTRACTORS

This certiftcallon is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Onjg-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Pad II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Siection 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
eech grant duhng the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards (he grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send H to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that It will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement riotifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a conlroOed substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace:
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitotion, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
'  subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.

Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

ExNbli 0 - Cedlftcttlon regancflriQ Drug Free Vendor Nile Is
Workplace ReqUremenis
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shail inciude the
identification numberfs) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, corrslstent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate egency;

1.7. Makirtg a good faith effort to continue to maintein a drug*free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1.1.2.1.3.1.4.1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the scte(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

Dale N^e: A
Tine:

Exhibit 0 - Certification rogerding Drug Free Vendor Initials
Workplsce Requirements
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section i .3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply wHh the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-0
•Social Servicas Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicatd Program urtder Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:'

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Corigress. an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continualton. renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or en employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall corriplele and submit Staixlard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be Included in the award
document for sut>-awdrds at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipiants shall certify and disctose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Trtle 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certfficalion shall be subject to a civil penally of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

njlln.
Date N^e: ^

Tltfo:

CtXMKSn 10713
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CERTIFtCATION REGARDiNG DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identirted in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12S49 end 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oobarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Cerlrficaticn;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and sutimittlng this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
ce/tirication set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit en
explanation of why It cannot provide the certiHcation. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The cartincation in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant kr^owingly rendered en erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OHHS agency to
wtrom this propose! (contract) Is submitted if at any time the prospeclK'e primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous yvhen submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered trar)aaction,'-'debarred,* 'suspended,' 'ineligible.' 'lower tier covered
transaction,* 'participant,* 'person,' 'primary covered transaction,' 'principal,* 'proposal,' and
'voluntarily excluded,' as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

. 6. The prospective primary participdnt agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorued by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (hat it will include the -
clause titled 'Cerilflcalion Regarding Oebarment Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* provided by OHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions end in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is r>ot deban^, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certiftcation is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method end frequency by vrhich It delermines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but Is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certincation required by this clause. The Knowledge and

Edtlbll F - CertllluDon Regardlno OebanDcnt. Suspension Vendor Inltlef
And Other Responsibility Matters tr i •
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that whichJis normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions. If a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enleb into a lower tier covered trenseciion with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, In
addition to other remedies available to the F^eral govemment, OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primery participant certifies to the best of its knowtedoe end belief, that it and its

principals;
11.1. are r>ot presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

volurttarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civi] judgment rendered against (hem for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection svith obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. Stale or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of emt>ezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsirication or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with corhmission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not v^'thin a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is ur^able to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to (his proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowte^e end belief (hat it and its principals;
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarrr>ent. declared Ineligible, or

■  voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. v4>ere the prospective lower tier participenl is unable to certify to eny of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to (his proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibilily. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Trensections.* without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitaiions for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

Date N^e: A 6
le;
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections t.lt and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vertdor will comply, and will, require any sut^grantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal rtondischmlnation requirements, which may include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Sale Streets Act of 1968 (42 tJ.S.C. Section 3789d} which prohibits
recipients of federal fundtr>g under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the deffvery of services or benefits, on the besis of race, color, religion, national origin, end sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Ptan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the besis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act Includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1884 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to emp^yment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons vrith disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681; 1683,1685-66), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance, li does not indude
employment discrimination;

- 26 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Depariment of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminetion; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based end neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for FaKh-Based
Organizations); and Whistlebiower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistlebiower Protections, which protects employees against
reprise! for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below Is a material representaiion of fact upon v^ich reliance Is placed when the
egency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the celiricaliqn shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government vride suspension or
debaiTnent.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency maKes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services. ar>d
to the Department of Health end Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name:

Dale f^me: -syirf* A
'itle: c
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C • En\nronmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contract^ for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply v^th the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 par day and/or the imposition of en administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the Geriera! Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing end submitting this contract, the Ver>dor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
an applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name;

Date Name: A
itle;

Ei4)[bn H > CeniflCSUon RegsrUtng Vendor infUels
EnvVonmernelTcbscco Smoke k /< /^/ «
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY

ACT BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104>191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As deHned herein. 'Business
Associate' shall mean .the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and 'Covered Entity'
shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health arxJ Human Services.

(1 Pennltions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate* has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity' has the rneaning given such term In.section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Desionated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aooreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care ODerations" shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Acf means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

^  'HIPAA' means,the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Priyecy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160.162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individuar shell have the same meaning as the term 'individual' in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

f

i- 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information' In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 ExMblM Vendor Initials
HeaRh insuoirce PonabUlly Act
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I. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. SubpartC, and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health Information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information urujsable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions • All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160.162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, iricluding but not limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not uste, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must,obtain, prior to making any such disclosure. (I)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentlaliy and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of" any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

V2014 EnNblM VtndQi.lrMali^ iH
HeftJth Inaurenc# PortattPiy Act '
BuiiiwjiAiiodatflAflroement hift

Page 2 of 8 bate.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 70969206-650E-4381-9D57-109A8899F9C2

OocuSign Envelope ID: 4B38332B-D322-409A-92F&-74ECD9AS0O74

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall hot disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any'additional security safeguards.

(3) ObllQatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not t>e
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, Including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-Identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

rnitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 46 hours of the
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duly to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party t)eneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiyiqg PHI

3/2014 ExNbIM Vendor InfUsL
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P>37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with ihe terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

1. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request froni Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shad make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)

,  business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back>up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Busing

V20t4 EzHbltl Vendor InhlBl
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limiiatlon(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals in accordance with 4,5 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of pennisslon provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions.on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance vrith 45 CFR 164.522,
to the exient that such restriction may aflect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately ,
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulalorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended Jo include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such actio'n as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as.is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be^resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rul

Exhibit I Vendor initl^
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SeoreQatlon. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services • rH Oo&.snjw

state of the Vendor

Signature of Author!^ Representative

r^me of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date^

Sigruture of Aufhorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

dio
Title of Authorized Representative

r/

Date
hia.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountabiltty and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation artd associated first^tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more, if the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modirications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject lo the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Pert 170 {Reporting Subeward and Executive Compensatton Information), the
Deportment of Health end Human Services (OHHS) must report the f^Iowing information for any
dubeword or contract award subject to the FFATA reporlirtg requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS 0)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if;

10.1. More than 60% of annual gross revenues ere from the Federal government, and those
revenues ere greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already evaiiable through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Vendor Identined in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accounlabiiily and Transparency Act, Public Law 109*282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Pert 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certificetion:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name:

Dale Name:

ExN&n J - C«hlAc«Uon Regarding tne Federel Funding Vendor InlUala.
AccourtaWray And Traruparency Act {FFATA) CompBancd {/ / |in
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FORMA

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, i certify that the responses to the
below listed questions ere true end accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity Is: I Slfi* \ \

2. in your business or organization's preceding compieted fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annuai gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts. -
loans, grants, sub-grants, andyor cooperative agreements; and {2) S2S.000.000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federai contracts, su^ontracts, ioans, grants, subgrants, end/or
cooperative agreements?

• NO YES

If the answer to U2 ebove is NO. stop here

If the enswer to #2 above is YES, please answer the fotlowing;

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic.reports filed under section 13(e) or lS(d) of the Securities
Exchar>ge Act of 1934 (IS U.S.C.78m(8), 7^d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 ebove is YES. stop here

If the answer to d3 above is NO, please answer (he following;

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization areas follows:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name;

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

CmOKHSn 10713
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The foltowing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach* means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized' disclosure,
unauthoriz^ acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized' users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident' In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data' means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHH3) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFl). Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
businew associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

.6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware,, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent.' Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFl,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information' (or 'PI') means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19. biometrlc records, etc..
atone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific indivtdual. such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually- Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and'164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10.-"Protected Health information' (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that Is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by

.  the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information

except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including'but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and. Security Rule..

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying OMHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. ApplicaUon Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, (he Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryption .capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL enc^pts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via cerlified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password'protected.

6. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile d6vice(s) or laptop from which information will be
transrhltted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders arxJ sut>-folders used for transmitting Confidentia! Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cyde (i.e. Confidenbal Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmittlrtg Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor wilt have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherv^se required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

'States. This physical location requirement shall also apply In the Implementation of
cloud computing, cloud sen/ice or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. the Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to-retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currenily«supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intruslon-detectior^ and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation vrith the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

6. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certrftcation for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitlzation, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,"
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 600-86, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecyde. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape. disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The' Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Oepariment confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor v/ill work with the Department to sign and cornply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed v/hen the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership mernber within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach UabilityT In (he event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pi and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 5520). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually Identifiable heatth
information and as applicable under State lav^.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified In this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Infonnatlon at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and passvrord-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential information only If encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that Is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locKs, card keys,
biometric Idenuriers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data. Including any
derivative files containing personally Identifiable information, end in ell cases.

.such data must be encrypted at all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on-portable media as required in section IV above.

h. In all other instances Confidential. Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name end password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must rK)tify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 305. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In'this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine (he risk level of incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

-  Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrlvacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

6. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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